37"

ANNUAL REPORT

2019 - 2020

=

Manipal Finance Corporation Ltd.

Regd. Office: “Manipal House”- Manipal — 576 104
Udupi Dist., Karnataka




Managing Director: Registered Office:

Sri T Narayan M Pai “Manipal House”- Manipal — 576 104
Udupi Dist., Karnataka
Ph: 0820-2570741
CIN : L65910KA1984PLCO05988

Directors: Auditors:
Smt. Vinoda C Sherigar M/s Sri Ramulu Naidu & Co.
Sri B Ashok Pai Chartered Accountants

13-12-1394/51

Ram Bhavan Complex
Kodialbail
Mangalore-576 003

Company Secretary:

Ms. Shipra Agarwal

Chief Financial Officer: Banker:

Sri T Sanjay Pai Canara Bank (Syndicate Bank)
Corporation Bank
ICIC! Bank Ltd.

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent
{For Physical and Demat Shares)

Cameo Corporate Services Ltd.,
V Floor, Subramanian Building
Subramanian Building

No.1, Club House Road

Cherinai 600 002




NOTICE TO THE MEMBERS

NOTICE is hereby given that the 37" Annual General Meeting of the Members of Manipal Finance Corporation
Ltd. will be held on Thursday, the 24" December, 2020 at 3.00 p.m. at the Company’s Regd. Office: “Manipal
House”, Manipal -576 104 Udupi District, Karnataka to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31% March, 2020, statement of Profit and
Loss for the year ended on that date and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Sri Basthi Ashok Pai (DIN: 08136975), who retires by rotation, and
being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3. Toconsider and, if thought fit to pass, with or without modification, the following resolution as an Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT in partial modification of the Special Resolution passed in the 34" Annual General
Meeting of the members of the Company held on 27/09/2017, Sri T Narayan M Pai, (DIN 00101633) who
was re-appointed as Managing Director of the Company for a period of 5 years with effect 01/01/2018.
pursuant to the provisions of Section 196 and 197 read with Schedule V and atl other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 (The Act) and the Companies (Appointment and Remunerations of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in
force), and in terms of Articles of Association of the Company, shall be liable to retire by rotation during the
period he holds the position as Managing Director.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of Directors/Company Secretary of the Company be and are hereby
severally authorized for and on behalf of the Company to do all acts, things and deeds and take all such steps as
may be necessary to give effect to this Resolution.”

4. To consider re-appointment of Mrs. Vinoda Chandappa Sherigar (DIN: 07224755) as an Independent
Director of the Company for second term,

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149 and 152 read with Schedule [V and other
applicable provision, if any of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act’) and Rules made thereunder and the
applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force).

Mrs. Vinoda Chandappa Sherigar (DIN:07224755), who was appointed as an Independent Director till —
29" June 2020 and being eligible has submitted a declaration that she meets the criteria of independence

as provided in section 149(6) of the Act and regulation 16 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure ol
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time, and in respect of whom the Company .

has received a notice in writing under Section 160 of the Act from a member proposing her candidature
for the office of Director and who is eligible for appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed as an
Independent Director of the Company, not liable to retire by rotation and to hold office for a second term
of 5 (five) consecutive years with effect from 29" June 2020 to 29" June 2025."

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any Director and/or the Company Secretary of the Company, be and is
hereby authorised severally to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered necessary
or desirable to give effect to this resolution and matters incidental thereto.”




3. Alteration of Memorandum of Association for reclassification of Authorised Share Capital

To consider and if thought fit to pass, with or without Modifications the following resolution as Special
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT, pursuant to the provisions of Section 13, 64 and other applicable Sections of the
Companies Act, 2013 and as permissible by the Company’s Memorandum of Association, the Authorised
Share Capital of the Company be and is hereby altered without increasing or decreasing the aggregate
amount thereof by dividing and reclassifying Rs.15,00,00,000/- (Rupees Fifteen Crores Only) divided
into 9000000 (Ninty Lakh) Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each amounting to Rs.9,00,00,000/- and 6000000
(Sixty Lakh)Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.10/-cach amounting to
Rs.6,00,00,000/- in the Share Capital of the Company.”

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the Company be and is
hereby altered to read as follows:

V' The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is Rs.15,00,00,000/-(Rupees Fifteen Crores Only)
divided into 9000000 (Ninty Lakhs) equity shares of Rs.10/- each and 6000000 (Sixty Lakhs) Non
Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares of Rs.10/- each with the rights privileges and conditions
attached there to as are provided by the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and regulations of the
Company with power to increase or reduce the said capital of the Company and to divide the shares in the
Company for the time being in accordance with the provisions of the Act and regulations of the Company
and to vary, modify or abrogate any rights, privileges or conditions in such manner as may be for the time
being provided by the regulations of the Company.”

6. Approval for issue of 7% Non —Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares (NCRPS)

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a
Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 55, 62 and all other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and read with The Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, The
Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 including any statutory modification(s)
or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force and as per the enabling clauses of the Memorandum of
Association and Articles of Association of the Company and the listing Agreement entered into by the
Company with the Stock Exchange where the shares of the Company are listed and subject to the
approval of the Public Financial Institutions (PFLs), Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI),
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) and all other concerned authorities and departments, if any, and to the extent
necessary for such other approvals, permissions and sanctions, as may be necessary, the approval of the
Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board to issue 29.50,000 Non-Cumulative Redeemable
Preference Shares (NCRPS) of Rs. 10/- each for cash at par to the existing 11% Non-cumulative
Redecmable Preference Shareholders on preferential basis and the board may in its sole discretion at any
time hereafter decide and at such time or times in one or more tranches to issue/allot the shares.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in accordance with the provisions of Section 43 of
The Companies Act, 2013 and Companies {Share capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 the NCRPS terms
are as under:

1) The NCRPS shall be non-participating in surplus funds and in surplus assets and profits, on winding-up —_
which may remain after the entire capital has been repaid,;

ii) The NCRPS shall carry a preferential right vis-a-vis equity shares with respect to payment of dividend
- or repayment of capital;

i1i) The NCRPS shall have a voting right as per the provisions of Section 47(2) of the Companies Act,
2013.

iv) The payment of dividend is at 7% PA and the same is non-cumulative basis.




v) The NCRPS shall be Non-convertible shares which are issued at par value of Rs. 10/- each

vi) The NCRPS shall be redeemable at par after the expiry of 12 months from the date of issue with
mutual consent of the parties or redeemable at the expiry of the period of 20 vears from the date of issue.

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution and for removal of
any doubts or difficulties, the Board be and is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and
things and execute all such deeds, documents, instruments and writings as it may in its absolute discretion
deem necessary or desirable and pay any fees and commission and incur expenses in relation thereto to
give, from time to time, such directions as may be necessary, expedient, usual or proper and to settle any
question or doubt that may arise in relation thereto or as the Board in its absolute discretion may think fit
and to do all acts, deeds and matters consequential and supplemental thereto.”

Registered Office: By Order of the Board

Manipal House
Manipal 576 104

Date:25.11.2020
Sd/-

(T Narayan M Pai}

Managing Director
DIN: 00101633




NOTES:

. In view of the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing norms and pursuant to the
General Circular No. 14/2020, 17/2020 and 20/2020 dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05,
2020, respectively, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (collectively “MCA Circulars™) and
Circular No. SEB/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020 issued by the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (“SEBI Circular”) and in compliance with the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 (“Listing Regulations™) the 37" Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the Company is being
held in physical mode following the advisories issued from the Authorities concerned including
physical distancing, wearing mask, sanitization etc.

2. The relevant Explanatory Statement pursuant to section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect
of Special Business at the meeting, is annexed hereto and forms part of this notice.

3. Pursuant to MCA Circular No.14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the facility to appoint proxy to attend and
cast vote for the members is not available for this AGM. However, in pursuance of Section 112 and
Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, representatives of the members such as the President of India
or the Governor of a State or body corporate can attend the AGM.

4. Members holding shares in physical form can avail the nomination facility by filing Form SH-13, as
prescribed under Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder, with the Company.
Members holding shares in demat form may contact their respective Depository Participant(s) for
availing this facility.

5. The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from
21.12.2020 to 24.12.2020 (both the days inclusive)

6. Corporate Members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the Meeting pursuant to
Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013 are requested to send to the Company, a certified copy of the
relevant Board Resolution together with their respective specimen signatures authorising their
representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.

7. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent
Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members holding shares in
electronic form are, therefore requested to submit the PAN to their Depository Participant with whom
they are maintaining their demat account(s). Members holding shares in physical form can submit their
PAN details to the Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agent. As per Regulation 40 of SEBI Listing
Regulations (as amended), requests for effecting transfer of securities, except in case of transmission or
transposition of securities, shall not be processed effective from April 01, 2019 unless the securities are
held in the dematerialized form. Hence, the Members holding equity shares of the Company in physical
form are requested to take action to dematerialize the same promptly.

8 All the relevant documents referred in this Notice shall be available for inspection by the Members upto
the date of 37" Annual General Meeting electronically and the Member(s) may send a request for
inspection of documents to the Company (Email 1D: tnmpai@mfgroupco.com) and mention the details
of Folio No. or Client ID/DP ID wherein the shares of the Company are held by the Member(s).

9. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA} Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the
Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.mfgroupco.com.
The Notice can also be accessed from the website of the Stock Exchange ie. BSE Limited i
at www.bseindia.com. The AGM/ Notice is also disseminated on the website of CDSL (agency for .
providing the Remote e-Voting facility and e-voting system during the AGM)
i.e.www.evotingindia.com.

10. The Company has transferred unclaimed dividend declared upto the financial year ended 31 March,
1995 to the General Account of the Central Government as required by the Companies Unpaid
Dividend (Transfer to General Revenue Account of the Central Government) Rules 1978. Those
shareholders who have so far not claimed or collected their dividend upto the aforesaid financial year
may claim their dividend from Registrar of Companies, Karnataka, Bangalore.
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The Company has transferred the unclaimed dividend for the financial year ended 31.03.1996 and
31.03.1997 to Investor Education and Protection Fund set up by the Central Govt.

11. Members seeking any information with regard to the Accounts are requested to write to the Company at
an early date, so as to enable the Management to keep the information ready at the meeting.

12. The members are requested to get their shares dematerialized. The Company’s ISIN Code
INE798EQ1013 (CDSL).

13. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has taken a “Green Initiative in the Corporate Governance” by
allowing paperless compliances by the companies and has issued circulars stating that service of
notice/documents including Annual Report can be sent by e-mail to its members. To support this green
initiative of the Government in full measure, members are requested to register their e-mail addresses in
respect of electronic holdings with the Depository through their concerned Depository Participants.

14. (a) In accordance with the provision of section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014, the shareholders may exercise their option to participate
through electronic voting system and the Company is providing the facility for voting by electronic
means (e-voting) to all its members. The Company has engaged the services of Central Depository
Services India Limited (CDSL) to provide e-voting facilities and enabling the members to cast their vote
in a secured manner. [t may be noted that this e-voting facility is optional. This facility will be available
at the link www.evotingindia.com during the following voting period:

The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under;

(i)  The voting period begins on 21.12.2020 at 9.30 am. and ends on 23.12.2020 at 5.00 p.m. During this
period shareholders™ of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialised form, as on
the cut-off date (record date) of 17.12.2020 may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be
disabled by CDSL for voting thereafter.

(ity  Sharehelders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting
venue.

(iit}  The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.
(iv)  Click on Shareholders.
(v)  Now Enter your User ID
a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary 1D,
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP 1D followed by 8 Digits Client |D,
¢. Members holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company.
(vi)  Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.
{vii)  If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier
voting of any Company, then your existing password is to be used.
{viiiy  If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:
For Members holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for
both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)
Members who have not updated their PAN with “the Company/Depository
Participant are requested to use the first two letters of their name and the 8 digits

of the sequence number in the PAN field.
In case the sequence number is less than 8 digits enter the applicable number of —
0’s before the number after the first two characters of the name in CAPITAL
letters. Eg. If your name is Ramesh Kumar with sequence number | then enter
RA0GQ000001 in the PAN field.

Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in
Bank Details | your demat account or in the Company records in order to login.

OR Date of If both the details are not recorded with the depository or Company please enter
Birth (DOB) the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in

instruction (iv).

(ix)  After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.




(x)  Members holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However,
members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required
to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be
also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other Company on which they are eligible to
vote, provided that Company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to
share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password confidential.

(xi)  For Members holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions
contained in this Notice.

(xii)  Click on the EVSN for the relevant <Company Name> on which you choose to vote.

(xiii)  On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option
“YES/NO™ for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to
the Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

(xiv)  Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.

{(xv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT™. A confirmation box will be
displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL™
and accordingly modify your vote.

(xvi)  Once you "CONFIRM" your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

(xvii)  You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the Voting page.

(xviii)  If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image vertfication
code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.

(xix)  Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app m-Voting available for android based
mobiles. The m-Voting app can be downloaded from Google Play Store. Apple and Windows phone users
can download the app from the App Store and the Windows Phone Store respectively. Please follow the
instructions as prompted by the mobile app while voting on your mobile.

{xx)  Note for Non — Individual Shareholders and Custodians

¢ Non:Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required to log
on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates.

e A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to
helpdesk.evotingf@cdslindia.com.

e After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password.
The Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

o The list of accounts linked in the login should be mailed to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com and on approval of the accounts they would be able to cast their vote.

» A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in favour of
the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same,

(xxi)  In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions
(*FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

(b) The Company has engaged the services of M/s Cameo Corporate Services Ltd., Chennai as the Authorized
Agency to provide e-voting facilities.

(¢) The Company has appointed Sri Ramachandra Bhat S, Practising Company Secretary, Bangalore as
‘scrutinizer’ for conducting and scrutinizing the e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

Members holding shares in single name and in physical form are advised to make a nomination in respect of their
sharehglding in the Company and those Members who hold shares singly in dematerialized form are advised to make ’
a nomination through their Depository Participants.




Explanatory Note pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

Item No.3 of the Notice

The Members had approved the re-appointment of Mr. T. Narayan M Pai as the Managing Director of the Company
for a period of 5 (five) years with effect from January 01, 2018. The terms and conditions of his appointment were
also approved by the Members in the said AGM.

In order to fulfil the requirements of the provisions of section 152 (6)(a) of the companies Act 2013, it is felt
necessary to make him liable to retire by rotation during the period he holds the position as Managing Director of the
Company. Accordingly company has decided to modify his terms of Appointment to that extent, subject to approval
of the members at the ensuing AGM. All other terms of his appointment approved by the members previously,
remain unaltered

The Board recommends the Special Resolution set forth in the Notice for approval of the Members. This may be
treated as an abstract of the terms and conditions governing the variation in the terms of appointment/payment of
remuneration to Mr. T. Narayan M Pai, pursuant to Section 190 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable

provisions of the Act, if any.

Save and except Mr. T. Narayan M Pai and T Sanjay Pai, Chief Financial Officer, being Son of Sri T Narayan M Pai,
none of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company including their relatives is, in anyway concerned
or interested in the Resolution.

Item No.4 of the Notice:

Mrs. Vinoda Chandappa Sherigar (DIN:07224755) was appointed as Independent Directors of the Company
tor a period of five years with effect from 29" June 2015 to 29" June 2020 pursuant to the provisions of
Section 149 of the Act read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014
and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Nomination,
Remuneration and Compensation Committee of the Board, on the basis of the report of performance
cvaluation of Independent Directors, has recommended re-appointment of Mrs. Vinoda Chandappa Sherigar
as Independent Directors. The Board, based on the above recommendation of the Nomination,
Remuneration and Compensation Committee, considered that her continued association would be of
immense benefit to the Company and it is desirable to continue to avail her services. In this connection. it
is proposed to re-appoint Mrs. Vinoda Chandappa Sherigar as Independent Directors of the Company. not
liable to retire by rotation and to hold office for a second term of five years subject to approval of the
members with effect from 29" June 2020 to 29" June 2025. The Company has received notice under
Section 160 of the Act from a member proposing the candidature of Mrs. Vinoda Chandappa Sherigar
DIN:07224755) for the oftice of Independent Director of the Company. The Company has also received
declaration that she meets the criteria of independence as provided under Seétion 149(6) of the Companies
Act. 2013 and regulation 16 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations.
2015. as amended from time to time. In the opinion of the Board, Mrs. Vinoda Chandappa Sherigar
DIN:07224755) fulfills the conditions specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder
read with schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 for her re-appointment as Independent Director of the
Company.

The brief profile of Mrs. Vinoda Chandappa Sherigar is attached to this notice.

Your Directors recommend the resolutions set out at item No.4 to be passed as special resolution by the
members.

None of the Directors and other Key Managerial Personnel of the Company including their relatives,
except Mrs. Vinoda Chandappa Sherigar are concerned or interested, financially or otherwise in the said
Resolution.




Item No 5 of the Notice

At present Company’s authorized Share Capital is Rs.15,00,00,000/-. In order to accommodate any future
issues within the limit of Authorised Share Capital, it is proposed to reclassify the Authorised Share
Capital of the Company in the order of 90,00.000 equity shares of Rs.10/-amounting to Rs 9,00,00,000
and 60,00,000 Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares of Rs.10/- each amounting to Rs
600.00,000.” Making these changes in the capital structure of the company through its Memorandum of
association require approval of members by passing a special resolution in this regard.. Hence, the subject
on alteration in capital structure in the Memorandum of Association of the company is placed before the
members for approval in [tem No 4 of the Notice. '

Your Directors recommend the resolution set out in item No.5 of the Notice to be passed as special
resolution of the members.

None of the Directors is interested either directly or indirectly in the resolution.

Item No 6 of the Notice

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 25" November, 2020, has approved the offer and issue
29,50,000 fully paid 7% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares (NCRPS) of Rs. 10/- each for
cash at par to the existing 11% Non-cumulative Redeemable Preference Shareholders on preferential basis.
Pursuant to section 62(1)c) of the companies Act 2013, any further issue of shares, warrants approval of
niembers by means of a special resolution. Hence, the subject of further issue of preference shares 1s placed
before the members for approval. The Board is also authorized to decide the time and the amount of shares
to be allotted depending upon the market conditions prevailing at the time of issue. Accordingly, approval
of the members is being sought, by way of Special Resolution at item No.6 of the Notice referred above.

None of the Directors is interested except to the extent of his entitlement to the share and/or other
securities, if any, that may be issued to him as per the terms of issue of any such shares.

Registered Office: By Order of the Board
Manipal House
Manipal 576 104

Date:25.11.2020
Sd/-

(T Narayan M Pai)

Managing Director
DIN: 00101633




ANNEXURE TO ITEMS 2 OF THE NOTICE
Details of Directors seeking re-appointment at the forthcoming Annuat General Meeting as per the provisions of SEBIL
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 2015

Name of the Director Basthi Ashok Pai
Director Identification Number (DIN) 08136975
Date of Birth 12.07.1976
Nationality Indian

Date of Appointment on Board 30.05.2018
Qualification B.B.M.

Shareholding in the Company -

List of Directorships held in other Companies (excluding foreign, private and Section 8 --

Companies)
Memberships / Chairmanships of Audit and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committees across Member : Stakeholders
Public Companies Relationship Committee

Member: Audit Commiittee

There are no inter-se relationships between the Board Members.




ANNEXURE TO ITEMS 4 OF THE NOTICE

Details of Directors seeking re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting as per the provisions of SEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 2015

Name of the Director

Vinoda Chandappa Sherigar

Director Identification Number (DIN) 07224755
Date of Birth 15.08.1964
Nationality Indian
Date of Appeintment on Board 29.06.2015
Qualification” B.A

Shareholding in the Company

List of Directorships held in other Companies (excluding foreign, private and Section 8
Companies)

Memberships / Chairmanships of Audit and Stakeholders® Relationship Committees across
Public Companies

Member : Stakeholders
Relationship Committee
Member: Audit Committee

There are no inter-se relationships between the Board Members.




Board’s report to the Shareholders

To,
The Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 37" Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company
and the accounts for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2020.

1.Financial summary or highlights/Performance of the Company

(Rs. In '000)
Particulars
31% March, 2020 31" March, 2019

Income 2788 2379
Expenses 6265 4082
T?E:'Eﬁt {/(Loss) before Exceptional Items and 3477 1703
Exceptional Items - Income 70237 10131
Profit/(Loss) before Tax 66760 8428
Balance of Loss b/f from previous year -605615 -614043
Net loss carried forward -538855 -605615

The company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (IND-AS) notified under section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (The Act) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (Amended from time to time)
from April 1, 2019 and effective date of such transition is April 1, 2018. Such transition has been carried out from
the erstwhile Accounting Standards notified under the Act, read with relevant rules issued there under and guidelines
issued by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) (collectively referred to as ‘the previous GAAP). The figures have been
presented in accordance with the format prescribed for financial statements for a Non Banking Finance Company
(NBFC) whose financial statements are drawn up in compliance of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 in division III of Notification No. GSR 1022 (E) dated October, 11, 2018, issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, Govt. of India.

2. State of Company’s affair

During the year ending 31st March, 2005 the Scheme of Compromise and Arrangement under Section 391 of the
Companies Act,1956 to effect the restructure of Company’s debts particularly Debentures and subordinated
debts of the Company was framed and presented before the Honorable High Court of Karnataka. Accordingly,
the meeting of the Shareholders, Debenture Holders and Subordinated Debt holders were held on 20th April,
2005. The scheme as proposed had provided for payment of principal in a phased manner over 60 months from
effective date and payment of interest accrued till 30th June, 2002 within 72 months from the effective date. The
Scheme as proposed do not provide for accrual of interest after 30th June, 2002. (For the above purpose the
effective date means the date on which the Order of High Court of Karnataka sanctioning the Scheme of
Arrangement is filed with the Registrar of Companies in Karnataka.)

On 10th July 2009, Honorable High Court of Karnataka has directed the Company to submit the details of
payments made to Non-Convertible Debenture holders and subordinated debt holders from 1st April, 2005.
Accordingly the details were furnished to Honorable Court. It was submitted before the Honorable Court that the
Company has settled substantial portion of Non-Convertible Debentures and Subordinated Debts and it was
therefore felt that the scheme requires to be changed having regard to the settlements already made and quantum
of non-convertible debentures and subordinated debts remaining to be settled. Therefore the Company had
proposed to withdraw the scheme of arrangement from the Honorable High Court of Karnataka, with an option
to present a new scheme of arrangement. The Honorable High Court of Karnataka has permitted the Company to
withdraw the petition, with liberty to file a fresh petition, vide its order dated 28th October, 2009. Accordingly,
the Company is exploring the possibility of proposing a fresh petition to be filed before the Honorable High
Court of Karnataka. At present the Company is concentrating only on recovery of its dues and setting the debts.




3. About Covid-19
In the last month of Financial Year 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic developed rapidly in to a global crisis, forcing

governments to enforce lock-downs of all economic activities. For the Company, the focus immediately shifted to
ensuring health and well-being of all employees and on minimizing disruption to services for all our customers.

4. Dividend:

The Company has not declared any Dividend on equity shares, due to insufficient profit.

5. Reserves:

During the year, the Company has not transferred any amount to General Reserve Account.

6. (a) Share Capital:

The paid up Equity Share Capital as on 31st March, 2020 was Rs.83810 thousand and Preference Share Capital of
Rs.29500 thousand. During the year under review, the Company has not issued any shares. The Company has not
issued shares with differential voting rights. It has neither issued employee stock options nor sweat equity shares and
does not have any scheme to fund its employees to purchase the shares of the Company.

During the financial years 1999-2000 and 2001-2001, your Company has issued 29,50,000, 11% Non-cumulative
Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs.10/- on preferential allotment basis. Since the said shares are due for
redemption during the year 2020-21, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 25" November, 2020, has
approved the offer and issue 29,50,000 fully paid 7% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares
(NCRPS) of Rs. 10/- each for cash at par to the existing 11% Non-cumulative Redeemable Preference
Shareholders on preferential basis. Pursuant to section 62(1)(c) of the companies Act 2013, any further
issue of shares, warrants approval of members by means of a special resolution. Hence, the subject of
further issue of preference shares is placed before the members for approval. The Board is also authorized
to decide the time and the amount of shares to be allotted depending upon the market conditions prevailing
at the time of issue. Accordingly, anroval of the members is being sought, by way of Special Resolution
at item No 5 of the Notice of the 37" AGM.

(b) Reclassification of Authorised Share Capital:

At present Company’s authorized Share Capital is Rs.15,00,00,000/-. In order to accommodate any future
issues within the limit of Authorised Share Capital, it is proposed to reclassify the Authorised Share
Capital of the Company in the order of 90,00,000 equity shares of Rs.10/-amounting to Rs 9,00,00,000
and 60,00,000 Non Cumulative Redeemable Preference shares of Rs.10/- each amounting to Rs
600,00,000.” Making these changes in the capital structure of the company through its Memorandum of
association require approval of members by passing a special resolution in this regard.. Hence, the subject
on alleration in capital structure in the Memorandum of Association of the company is placed before the
members for approval in [tem No 4 of the Notice of the 37M AGM.

7. Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

a. Independent Director :

The current term of Mrs. Vinoda Chandappa Sherigar, Independent Director of the Company expired on 29"
June, 2020. On the recommendation of the Nomination, Remuneration and Compensation Committee, the
Board of Directors of the Company have re-appointed Mrs. Vinoda Chandappa Sherigar (DIN:07224755) as an
Independent Director of the Company for a period of 5 years w.e.f. 29" June 2020 subject to approval of
the Members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting (AGM).

A brief profile and other related information of Mrs. Vinoda Chandappa Sherigar has been given in the
Notice convening the ensuing AGM.

During the year under review, pursuant to Section 134(3)(d) of the Act declarations were received from all




Independent Directors of the Company confirming that they fulfill the "criteria of independence" specified
in Section [49(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(b) of the under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the year under review, Mr. Basti Ashok Pai (DIN: 08136975) retires by rotation and being eligible
offers himself for re-appointment.

b. Kev Managerial Personnel:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 203 of the Act the following are the Key Managerial Personnel
of the Company

Sr no. Name Designation

1. Mr. T Narayan M Pai Managing Director

2. Mr. T Sanjay Pai Chiet Financial Officer
3. Ms. Shipra Agarwal Company Secretary

8. Particulars of Employees:

During the year under review, the Company had no employees whose remuneration exceeded the limit prescribed
under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and subsequent amendments thereto.

Particulars of top ten employees of the Company in terms of remuneration drawn during the year 2019-2020
presented as an annexure to the Board Report during the Board Meeting is preserved separately and the same will be
made available to any shareholders on request made to the company in writing.

9. Meetings:

A calendar of Meetings is prepared and circulated in advance to the Directors. During the year four Board Meetings
and four Audit Committee Meetings were convened and held. The intervening gap between the Meetings was within
the period prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013,

a. Board of Directors, Meetings of the Board/Committees/Annual General Meetings.

The Board comprised of three Directors, of which one is executive and two non-executives including a woman director.

The non-executive Directors are eminent personalities with experience in Management and Finance. The Board oversees as to how t
management serves and protects the long-term interest of all the stakeholders.

)Number of Board Meeting and Attendance of Directors:

The Board met 5 times during financial year 2019-2020. The details are as follows:

Date of Meeting Board Strength No.of Directors present
30.05.2019 3 3
14.08.2019 3 2
14.11.2019 3 3
16.12.2019 3 3
14.02.2020 3 3

The last AGM was held on 30"  September, 2019 and 2 out of 3 Directors are attended the AGM.




ii)The Composition of Board of Directors, their directorships in other companies and memberships in committees and the details of

their attendance at the Board Meetings are given below:

Sl | Name of the Category of No.of | Attendance at No.of other | No.of Board
No. | Directors Directorships Meetings | last AGM directorship | committees in
attended which
Chairman(C)M
ember(M)
1 Sri T Narayan M Promoter 3(C)
Pai Executive 5 Yes Nil
2. Sri B Ashok Pai | Non-Executive
4 Yes Nil 2{M)
3. | Smt Vinoda C Non-Executive
Sherigar 5 No Nil 2(M)

b. Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee comptised of the following members of the Board:

Sri T Narayan M Pai, Managing Director
Sri B Ashok Pai, Member
Smt Vinoda C Sherigar, Member

The role and terms of reference of Audit Committee cover the areas mentioned under Regulation 72 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligation & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Section 179 of the Companies Act, 2013, besides other terms
referred to by the Board of Directors from time to time. During the year, the Committee met on 30.05.19, 14.08.19, 14.11.2019
and 14.02.2020. Sri T Narayan M Pai, Managing Director is the Compliance Officer.

Attendance of the Directors at the Audit Committee Meeting:

Meeting held on No. of Members present
30.05.2019 3
14.08.2019 2
14.11.2019 3
14.02.2020 3

¢. Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

This Commiitee will attend to the function relating to review of remuneration policy, changes to be effected in the policy from
time to time and other aspects of remuneration to the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel from time to time.

Sri T Narayan M Pai, Managing Director is the only whole-time Director of the Company and he does not draw any remuneration.

Details of remuneration for the year ended 3 1st March, 2020:

-

i) Whole-Time Director: Nil

ii} Non-Executive Directors & Independent Directors: Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors were paid remuneration
by way of sitting fees for attending Board Meetings.

iii) Key Managerial Personnel: details of remuneration paid Chief Financial Officer of the Company has been furnished in the
Annexure [- Form MGT-9 which forms part of the Boards’ Report.

d. Stakeholders Relationship Committee :
The Committee approves transfer, transmission, issue of duplicate Share, Debenture Certificates and Sub - Ordinated Debts,

review and redress shareholders grievances/complaints on matters relating to transfer of shares, debentures, sub-ordinated debts,
non-receipt of Balance Sheet etc.

Mr. T Narayan M Pai, Managing Director is the Compliance Officer.

Number of Shareholders Complaints received Nil




Number of Shareholders Complaints settled : Nil
Number not solved to the satisfaction of the shareholders: Nil
Number of pending Share transfers : Nil

e. Annual General Meetings:

The last three Annual General Meetings were held in Regd. Office: “Manipal House”,- Manipal 576 104.

AGM Date Time Special Resolution required
No.
34 27/09/2017 4.00 p.m. Yes
35 28/09/2018 3.00 p.m. Yes
36 30/09/2019 3.00 p.m. No

All the resolutions as set out in the respective notices were passed by the shareholders.

10. Board Evaluation:

Pursuant to provisions of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Board has carried out an annual evaluation of its own
performance, performance of the Directors as well as the evaluation of the working of its Committees. The
Nomination and Remuneration Committee has defined the evaluation criteria, procedure and time schedule for the
Performance Evaluation process for the Board, its Committees and Directors.

The Board’s functioning was evaluated on various aspects, including inter alia degree of fulfillment of key
responsibilities, Board structure and composition, establishment and delineation of responsibilities to various
Committees, effectiveness of Board processes, information and functioning. Directors were evaluated on aspects
such as attendance and contribution at Board/ Committee Meetings and guidance/ support to the management outside
Board/ Committee Meetings. In addition, the Chairman was also evaluated on key aspects of his role, including
setting the strategic agenda of the Board, encouraging active engagement by all Board members and motivating and
providing guidance to the Managing Director. Areas on which the Committees of the Board were assessed included
degree of fulfillment of key responsibilities, adequacy of Committee composition and effectiveness of meetings.

The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board, excluding the Director
being evaluated. The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non Independent Directors was carried out by
the Independent Directors who also reviewed the performance of the Board as a whole. The Nomination and
Remuneration Committee also reviewed the performance of the Board, its Committees and of the Directors

11. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

Regulation 15 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, does not
apply to your Company, as your Company’s equity share Capital and net worth is below the threshold limit
prescribed under the said Regulation. Hence, the Report on Corporate Governance is not provided. Part C .
D & E of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 are not
applicable since the company was having paid up equity share capital not exceeding rupees ten crores and
net worth not exceeding rupees twenty five crores, as on the last day of the previous financial year.

Part F Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 -
Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense Account — there are no shares
outstanding in demat suspense account or unclaimed suspense account.

12. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT:

Review of Operations:

The Company is engaged in the business of Hire Purchase and Lease finance and has completed 37 years
of operation in this fieid. During the year 2019-2020, the Company has earned a net profit of Rs.66760
thousands as against the net profit of Rs.8428 thousands in the previous year 2018-2019.




Hire Purchase and Lease finance business is facing severe competition and margins are under great
pressure. In the aftermath of stringent Prudential Norms promuigated by the RBI, the NBFCs all across the
country suffered a severe setback. Their borrowing capacity is drastically curtailed. With no avenues for
further growth, together with ever increasing defaulters in the list of corporate clients, triggered the
downfall in the performance of the NBFCs. The situation that has arisen in your Company is in no way
different. In spite of these hurdles, the Company has tried its best to salvage the situation by reducing its
operational cost on all fronts.

The Company is putting in serious efforts to recover NPA accounts. Criminal complaints under Section
138 of Negotiable Instrument Act are also lodged simultaneously against such defaulters whose cheques
were dishonoured. The Company is making good progress on the Recovery Front.

The Company has appointed M/s. N P Pai & Co. Chartered Accountants, Udupi (Firm Regn No.
115271W) as its Internal Auditor.

The discussion on financial performance of the Company is covered in the Director's Report. There has
been no matertal development on the human resource front during the year. The number of employees
employed as on 31% March 2020 was 3.

During the year ending 31* March, 2005 the Scheme of Compromise and Arrangement under Section 391 of the
Companies Act,1956 to effect the restructure of Company’s debts particularly Debentures and subordinated debts of
the Company was framed and presented before the Honorable High Court of Karnataka. Accordingly, the meeting of
the Shareholders, Debenture Holders and Subordinated Debt holders were held on 20™ April, 2005. The scheme as
proposed had provided for payment of principal in a phased manner over 60 months from effective date and payment
of interest accrued till 30" June, 2002 within 72 months from the effective date. The Scheme as proposed do not
provide for accrual of interest after 30™ June, 2002. (For the above purpose the effective date means the date on
which the Order of High Court of Karnataka sanctioning the Scheme of Arrangement is filed with the Registrar of
Companies in Karnataka.)

On 10" July 2009, Honorable High Court of Karnataka has directed the Company to submit the details of payments
made to Non-Convertible Debenture holders and subordinated debt holders from 1st April, 2005. Accordingly the
details were furnished to Honorable Court. It was submitted before the Honorable Court that the Company has
settled substantial pertion of Non-Convertible Debentures and Subordinated Debts and it was therefore felt that the
scheme requires to be changed having regard to the settlements already made and quantum of non-convertible
debentures and subordinated debts remaining to be settled. Therefore the Company had proposed to withdraw the
scheme of arrangement from the Honorable High Court of Karnataka, with an option to present a new scheme of
arrangement. The Honorable High Court of Karnataka has permitted the Company to withdraw the petition, with
liberty to file a fresh petition, vide its order dated 28" October, 2009. Accordingly, the Company is exploring the
possibility of proposing a fresh petition to be filed before the Honorable High Court of Karnataka.

13. CERTIFICATE UNDER REGULATION 34 OF SEBI (LODR) REGULATIONS, 2015

Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C Clause (10) (i) of Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015] a certificate received from a Company
Secretary in practice is enclosed as Annexure- IV.

14. Remuneration Policy & Managerial Remuneration:

None of the Directors of the Company, who may be a Managing or Whole-time Director of the Company’s, have
received any remuneration, including commission from the Company during the year.

None of the Directors of the Company have received any remuneration or commission from any Holding Company
or Subsidiary Company, service contracts, notice period, severance fees, fixed component and performance linked
incentives etc.

15. Details of Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies

The Company does not have any Subsidiary/Joint Ventures/Associate Companies




16. Auditors:

a. The Auditors, M/s Sriramulu Naidu & Co., Chartered Accountants, Mangalore (Firm Registration
No0.0089758S) retire at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
reappointment to hold office till the conclusion of the 39™ AGM to be held in the Calendar year 2022
subject to ratification in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

b. In respect of the Qualification / Observation made by the Auditors vide “Basis for Qualified Opinion™ .
“Emphasis of the Matter”, and Para 3, .4(e), 4(f), 4(g), 4 () (1), 4(G}2) and 4(j)(3) of the “Report on other
Legal and Regulatory Requirements” of “Report on Financial Statements” and Clause Nos.1,5,8,16 of
Annexure “A” to the Auditors Report, and Qualification given under Basis for [ssues of Qualified Opinion
under Annexure “B” for the Auditors Report and the qualifications given in report in relation to matters
specified in Para 3 (A) and (B) as per master direction DNBS.PPD.03/66.15.001/2016-17 issued by RBI
dated 29" September, 2016, the clarifications given vide Note Nos.13.01, 17.01, 27.01, 27.08, 27.11, 27.14,
27.15, 27.17, 27.18, 27.19, 27.20 and Significant Accounting Policies, Key Accounting Estimates and
Judgments I, I {m) to the financial statement are self explanatory.

Secretarial Audit Report:

In terms of Section 204 of the Act and Rules made there under, Sri $ Ramachandra Bhat, Practicing Company
Secretary (Membership No.04441, C P No.5421) from Bangalore has been appointed as Secretarial Auditor of
the Company. The report of the Secretarial Auditor is enclosed as Annexure III to this report. As per Section
134 (3f) of the Companies Act 2013 Company is required to make comments on the adverse remarks /
comments on the Secretarial Auditor’s Report.

1.

C.

As per the Secretarial Auditor’s Report placed before the Board, the Secretarial auditor have observed
that the Company has not published audited financial results in news papers as per the provisions of
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 2015 for the financial year ended 31.03.2020.1t
is clarified by the company stating that the Company has not published the same due to exemption
notification issued by SEBI following outbreak of COVID-19 Pandemic.

As per the Secretarial Auditor’s Report placed before the Board, the Secretarial Auditor have opined that
the company is a defaulter for non-payment of deposits/Debts accepted from the public as per the terms
of approval in compliance of the provisions of section 58A of the erstwhile Companies Act 1956 and the
Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules 1975. No legally approved scheme is in force for repayment
of deposits/Debts accepted from the public. As observed from the records, the company has repaid
Deposits/Debts to the tune of Rs.69666 thousand during the financial year ended 31.03.2020

Your Directors reiterate that the company has settled the dues of depositors /debt holders who have
approached the company at discounted rate with their mutual consent. At present the Company is only
concentrating on recovery of its dues and thereby settling its debts.

As per the Secretarial Auditor’s Report placed before the Board, the Secretarial Auditor have opined that
the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with minimum strength as per section
149(1)(a) of the companies Act 2013. Pursuant to section 149(4) of the companies Act 2013 read with
Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014, there has to be at
least 02 persons to be appointed as Independent Directors on the Board of the Company. However, it is
noticed that, the company has appointed only one Independent Director on the Board of the Company.
As per the Secretarial Auditor’s Report placed before the Board, the Secretarial Auditor have opined that
with respect to retirement of Directors by rotation, the company has not fulfilled the requirement of the
provisions of section 152 {6)(a) of the companies Act 2013.

In respect of the comments made by the Secretarial Auditor in his report with respect to Note No.3 and
4, your Directors reiterate that the Company will take immediate action for appointment of the required
number of directors on the board of the Company.

Internal Audit & Controls:

The Company has established and maintained adequate internal controls over the financial reporting. Internal
controls have been designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and




preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India. The
Company has internal control system commensurate with the size and nature of the business. The Company engages
M/s. N P Pai & Co., Chartered Accountants, Udupi ,(Firm Registration No.115271W / Membership No0.039351} as
its Internal Auditor. During the year, the Company continued to implement their suggestions and
recommendations to improve the control environment. Their scope of work includes review of processes
for safeguarding the assets of the Company, review of operational efficiency, effectiveness of systems and
processes, and assessing the internal control strengths in all areas. Internal Auditors findings are discussed
and acted upon and suitable corrective actions taken as per the directions of Audit Committee on an
ongoing basis to improve efficiency in operations.

d. Vigil Mechanism :

The Company has adopted a formal mechanism to the Directors and employees to report their concerns about
unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Company’s Code of Conduct or ethics policy.

¢. Risk management policy

The Company has adopted a Risk Management Policy in accordance with the provisions of the Act and in pursuant
to provisions of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. It establishes various levels of accountability and overview within
the Company, while vesting identified managers with responsibility for each significant risk.

The Internal Audit Department facilitates the execution of Risk Management Practices in the Company, in the areas
of risk identification, assessment, monitoring, mitigation and reporting. Through this programme, each Function and
Unit addresses opportunities and risks through a comprehensive approach aligned to the Company’s objectives. The
Company has laid down procedures to inform the Audit Committee as well as the Board of Directors about risk
assessment and management procedures and status. Sustainability is embedded in the Corporate Enterprise Risk
Management programme, which gives an opportunity to increase the effectiveness of risk management practices and
for improving business efficiency. The Company’s social and environmental policies correlate strongly with the risk
management strategy and ultimately the financial performance. This risk management process, which is facilitated
by internal audit, covers risk identification, assessment, analysis and mitigation. Incorporating sustainability in the
process also helps to align potential exposures with the risk appetite and highlights risks associated with chosen
strategies. The current risk slate and the comprehensive risk policy have been further redefined during the year. The
major risks forming part of the Enterprise Risk Management process are linked to the audit universe and are covered
as part of the annual risk based audit plan.

f. EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:

As required pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management
and Administration) Rules, 2014, an extract of annual return in MGT 9 as a part of this Annual Report as
ANNEXURE.

g. Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the Company which have
occurred between the end of the financial vear of the Company to which the financial statements relate
and the date of the report and changes in nature of business, if any: -

There are no such material changes to be reported in this regard and there are no change in nature of business.

h. Details of significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going
concern status and Company’s operations in future:

Your Directors wish to state that there have been no significant or material orders that were passed by the
Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which may impact the going concern status and operations of the Company in
future.

17. Particulars of loans, guarantees or investments under Section 186:

]
Details of Loans: Not applicable to NBF Companies since same are given in the ordinary course of business. Further, no loans

are given to any party.
Details of Guarantee / Security Provided: : Not applicable to NBF Companies. However no such guarantee or security provided.




Investments made are of the nature quoted /unquoted equity shares. Particulars of such investments are provided in the financial
statements vide note No.5.

18.Conservation of energy. technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo:

The Company did not have any activity in relation to conservation of energy or technology absorption. The
Company had no foreign exchange earnings or outgoings during the year under report.

19, Details in respect of adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to the Financial Statements:

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. During the
year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or operation were observed.

20. Deposits:
The detatls relating to deposits, covered under Chapter V of the Act,-

(a) accepted during the year; Nil
(b) remained unpaid at the end of the year; Rs.90 thousand.

(c) whether there has been any default in repayment of deposits or payment of interest thereon during the year and if
s0, number of such cases and the total amount involved:

(i) at the beginning of the year; Rs.179 thousand
(i) maximum during the year, Rs.179 thousand

(iii) at the end of the year; Rs.90 thousand

The details of deposits which are not in compliance with the requirements of Chapter V of the Act;

21. Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties:

All related party transactions that were entered into were on an arm’s length basis, in the ordinary course of
business and were in compliance with the applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). There were
no materially significant Related Party Transactions made by the Company during the year that would have
required sharcholders approval under the provisions of the Act. Details of the transactions with related parties are
provided in the Note No0.27.09 of accompanying financial statements. Form AOC-2 pursuant to clause (h) of sub-
section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is anaexed herewith

marked as Annexure II.

22, OBLIGATION OF COMPANY UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has. adopted a Policy on Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at the Workplace, in line with the provisions of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 and the Rules there under.
The Company has not received any complaint of sexual harassment during the financial year 2019-2020.

23. Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) : Not applicable

24. Human Resources
Your Company treats its “human resources” as one of its most important assets,

Your Company continuously invest in attraction, retention and development of talent on an ongoing basis. A number
of programs that provide focused people attention are currently underway. Your Company thrust is on the promotion
of talent internally through job rotation and job enlargement.




25. Directors’ Responsibility Statement
The Directors’ Responsibility Statement referred to in clause (¢) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies
Act, 2013, shall state that—
(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed along with
proper explanation relating to material departures;
(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at
the end of the financial year and of the profit and loss of the Company for that period,
(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting fraud and other irregularities;
(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and
(¢) the directors, in the case of a listed Company, had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the
Company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively.
(f) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that
such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

26. Transfer of Amounts to Investor Education and Protection Fund

As all the matured deposits, debentures and debts were already claimed, the question of transfer of such
amounts to Investor Education and Protection Fund does not arise.

7. LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGES:

28. The Company confirms that it has paid the Annual Listing Fees for the year 2019-2020 to Bombay Stock

Exchange, Mumbai where the Company’s Shares are listed.

29. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION:

In view of the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, social distancing norm to be followed and the
continuing restriction on movement of persons at several places in the country and pursuant to General
Circular Nos.14/2020, 17/2020 and 20/2020 dated 8th April 2020, [3th April 2020 and S5th May 2020,
respectively, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA Circulars™) and Circular
No.SEBI/HO/CFD/CMDI/CIR/P/2020/79 dated 12th May 2020 issued by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (“SEBI Circular™) and in compliance with the provisions of the Act and the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations™), the 37" AGM of the
Company is being conducted physically by strictly following the necessary advisories issued by the
Government in this behalf.

Pursuant to the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular, in view of the prevailing situation, owing to the
difficulties involved in dispatching of physical copies of the Notice of the 37" AGM and the Annual Report
for the year 2019-20 including therein the Audited Financial Statements for year 2019-20, are being sent
only by email to the Members. .
In line with the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular, the Annual report of the company will be available on
the website of the Company at www.mfgroupco.com and on the website of BSE Limited at
www.bseindia.com. The Company is providing remote E-voting facility to all members to enable them to
cast their votes electronically on all resolutions set forth in the Notice. This is pursuant to section 108 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014. The
instructions for remote E-voting are provided in the Notice. Members are requested to read the general
instructions for accessing and participating in the 37" AGM through VC/OAVM Facility and voting through
electronic means including remote e-Voting as set out in the Notice of 37" AGM

The Company has appointed Cs Ramachandra Bhat S, Practicing Company Secretary as the Scrutinizer for
conducting the remote e-voting and the voting process at the AGM in a fair and transparent manner.
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Annexure 1

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on financial year ended on 31.03.2020
Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & Administration} Rules, 2014,

|. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

1.| CIN L65910K A1984PLCO0S9RS
2. | Registration Date 29.3.1984
3. | Name of the Company Manipal Finance Corporation Ltd.

4. | Category/Sub-category of --

the Company
5. | Address of the Registered ‘Manipal House, Manipal — 576 104
office & contact details Udupi Dist. Karnataka. Ph.0820-2570741
6. | Whether listed Company Yes
7. | Name, Address & contact Cameo Corporate Services Ltd
details of the Registrar & Principal Office: Subramanian Building,

No. 1, Club House Road
CHENNALI — 600 002 Email: cameo{@cameoindia.com
Ph:28460390 (5 lines)

Transfer Agent, if any.

I PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY (All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total
turnover of the Company shall be stated)

S.No. | Name and Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover of the Company
products / services Product/service
1 NBFC KS 100%

I A. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
Catcgory-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year[As No. of Shares held at the end of the year[As on 31- % Change
Shareholders on 31-March-2019 March-2020 during
the year
Demat | Physical Total % of Total Demat Physical Total % of Total
Shares Shares

A. Promoters

{}) [ndian
a) individual/ - 1269936 1269936 15.15 -- 1269936 1269936, 15.15
HUF/Directors

b Central Govt -- -- - | - - - I

¢) State Govt(s) - - - _ .
d) Bodies Corp. 480014 1123881 1603895 i9.14 480014 1123881 1603895 19.14

¢) Banks / FI - - - - e

Y Any _other - - - -

Total
shareholding of

Promoter (A) 480014 | 2393817 | 2873831 3429 | 480014 | 2393817 | 2873831 34.29

B. Public

Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds




b} Banks / FI . 300 300 0.04 - 300 300 0.04 | --
¢) Central Govt

d} State Govt(s)

e) Venture

Capital Funds

) Insurance
Compasnies

) Flis

h) Foreign
Venture Capital
Funds

i) Others

{specify)
Sub-total (B)(1):-

-- 300 300 0.01 - 300 300 0.01 -

2. Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.
i) [ndian 1250 81292 82542 0.98 1250 31292 82542 0.98 | --

it} Overseas -- - - - - - 2l -

b) Individuals - - e }
i} Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital up
to Rs. 1 lakh

182382 5123826 5306208 63.31 230863 3075345 5306208 6331 | --

it} Individual
sharcholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of Rs 1
lakh

- 111780 111780 1.33 - 111780 111780 133 | -

¢} Others
{specify) -- - - - - - -
Non Resident
Indians ---m 6300 6300 0.08 - 6300 6300 0.08 [ -~
Overseas
Corporate
Bodics -- -- - - . - -
Forcign
Natiopals -- - - - - - - .
Clearing
Members -- - - - - - .

Trusts - - - - - -
Foreign Bodies -
DR - - -- - - - -] -

Sub-total -
(B)(2):- 183632 5323198 5506830 065.71 232113 5274717 5506830 65.71

Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(B){1)+
(B)(2) 1836321 5323498 5507130 65.71 232113 5275017 5507130 65.71 | - —_—

C. Shares held
by Custodian i
for GDRs & .

ADRs - - - - - - - - -

Grand Total 663646 | oo 8380961 100 712127 7668834 8380961 100 -
(A+B+C) )

B) Shareholding of Promoter-

SN Shareholding at the beginning of | Shareholding at the end of the

th
Shareholder’s Name € year year




No. of % of %of Shares | No. of % of %of Shares
Shares total Pledged / Shares total Pledged /
Shares of | encumbered Shares of | encumbered
the to total the to total
Company | shares Company | shares
1 Kamalaksha Pai K 4793 0.06 0 4793 0.06 0
5 | Narayan M Pai T 6357 0.08 o| 6357 0.08 o
3 | Vijayalaxmi N Pai 950 0.01 0| 950 0.01 0
4 | Jayanthi R Pai 5494 0.07 0| 5494 0.07 0
5 | vidya 1297 0.02 0| 1207 0.02 0
6 | Sunithi P Nayak 6272 0.07 0l 6mn 0.07 0
7 | Chetan B Pai 2307 0.03 0| 2307 0.03 0
8 | Sangeetha 3000 0.04 0| 3000 0.04 0
9 | Narayan M Pai T g3tz | 0% o| sz | 9% 0
10 | Shankarnarayan Aithal K 200 0-00 0} 200 0.00 0
11 | Vijayalaxmi N Pai 552 0.01 0| 552 0.01 0
12 | Narayan M Pai T 8356 0.10 0| 8336 0.10 0
13 | B Manjunath Shenai 868 0.1 0| 868 0.01 0
14 | Ranga Pai M 5500 0.07 o] 5500 0.07 0
15 | Suman Pai M 3500 0.04 0| 3500 0.04 0
16 | Ashok Pai T 215 0.03 0| 2215 0.03 0
17 | Neetha 1215 0.01 ol 1215 0.04 0
18 | Sunil 1515 0.02 0| 1515 0.02 0
19 | Sanjay 1215 0.01 ol 1215 0.01 0
20 | Manjunath Shenai B 4868 0.06 0| 4868 0.06 0
21 | Sharath Investments Ltd. 15183 0.18 0| 15183 0.18 0
22 | 1CDS Lid. 449163 | 336 0| 449163 | 0
23 | Vijayalaxmi N Pai 50 0.00 0| 50 0.00 0
24 | Vijayalaxmi N Pai 27 0.00 0| 27 0.00 0
25 | Vijayalaxmi N Pai 486 0ol 0| 486 0.01 0
26 | Vijayalaxmi N Pai 1130 0.01 0 1130 0.01 0
27 | Savoy Agencies P Ltd. 3771 | 14 o|3mg| 164 0
28 | Narayan M Pai T 797 0.01 0| 797 0.01 0
29 | Rajesh Pai T 1800 0.02 0| 1800 0.02 0
30 | Manipal Industries Ltd. 12650 | O3 ol 1650 | OB 0
31 | TVP Consultants Ltd. 7010m3 | &Y o 701073 | 837 0
32 | Manipal Sowbhagya Nidhi Lid. | 212956 | > o | 212056 | 254 0
33 | Manipal Prakashana Pvt Ltd. 35589 042 0| 35589 0.42 0
Praman Capital Market Services 0.33 0.33

34 | L. 28063 0 | 28063 0
35 | Vijayalaxmi N Pai 278660 | 332 o | 278660 | 332 0
36 | Sunil Pai T 278950 | >3 o|279s0 | 3 0
37 | Narayan M Pai T 27g2s0 | 332 o 27820 | 332 0
38 | Narayan M Pai T 278000 | 332 o | 278000 | 3?7 0
39 | Sanjay Pai 700 0.01 o| 700 0.01 0
40 | Sunil Pai 2500 0.03 0| 2500 0.03 0
41 | Sanjay Pai 2500 0.03 o | 2500 0.03 0
42 | Sunil Pai 1300 0.02 0| 1300 0.02 0
43 | Sanjay Pai 1200 0.01 0l 1200 0.01 0
44 | Manipal Sowbhagya Nidhi Ltd. ns00 | M 0| 11s00 | oM 0




C) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

SN | Particulars Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year during the year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares of the shares shares of the
Company Company
1 At the beginning of the year - -- ----
2 Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters | -- -- -- --
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. allotment
/transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):
3 At the end of the vear -- - -- --
D) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders:
(Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
SN | For Each of the Top 10 Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
Shareholders beginning during the
of the year year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares of shares shares of
the the
Company Company
At the beginning of the year 191979 2.30 191979 2.30
Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters -- -- -- --
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):
At the end of the year 191979 2.30 191979 230

E} Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

SN | Shareholding of each Directors and each Key | Shareholding at the Cumulative Shareholding
Managerial Personnel beginning during the
of the vear year
No. of % of total No. of % of total
shares shares of shares shares of
the the
Company Company
i At the beginning of the year 660487 7.88 660487 7.88
2 Date wise Increase / Decrease in Promoters -- - -- -
Shareholding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase /decrease (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc.):
3 At the end of the year 660487 7.88 660487 7.88




F) INDEBTEDNESS -Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment.

Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding deposits Loans Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the

financial year

i) Principal Amount 18652 135657 179 154488

ii) Interest due but not paid 3433 8820 v 14270

iii) Interest accrued but not due -- - - --

Total (i+ii+iii) 24085 144477 196 168758

Change in Indebtedness during the

financial year

* Addition

* Reduction 18194 73943 106 92243

Net Change

Indebtedness at the end of the financial

year

i) Principal Amount 4393 66080 90 70563

ii) Interest due but not paid 1498 4454 - 5952

ii) Interest accrued but not due -- - - --
| Total {i+iitiii) 5891 70534 90 76515

V. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL-
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Not applicable since no salary to Managing Director

B. Remuneration to other director(s):

SN. | Particulars of Remuneration

Name of Director

Total Amount
(Rs. in ,000)

Vinoda C Sherigar

1 Independent Directors

Fee for attending board committee
meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (1)

2 Other Non-Executive Directors

Fee for attending board committee
meetings

Commission

Others, please specify

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial
Remuneration

12

Rs.

Rs.

12

1

Rs in 000




C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN
MD/MANAGER/WTD
(Rs. in ,000)
SN | Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel

CEO | CS CFO Total
Shipra Agarwal | T Sanjay Pai
1 Gross salary - Rs.420 Rs.253 Rs.673

{a) Salary as per provisions contained in section | -- - - -
17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
{b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax - - - -
Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) -- - - -
Income-tax Act, 1961
Stock Option -- - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - - -
Commission - - - -

- as % of profit - - - -

others, specify... - - . -

5 Others, please specify - - - _
Total - Rs,420 Rs.253 Rs.673

V. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the Brief Details of Penalty / | Authority Appeal made,
Comparnies Act | Description Punishment/ [RD/NCLT/ if any (give
Compounding fees | COURT] Details)
imposed

A. COMPANY

Penalty -- - -- - --
Punishment - - - - .

Compounding - - -- - -
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty - - - - -
Punishment - - -

Compounding - - - -

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT--
Penalty --- - - -

Punishment - - - . _

Compounding - - - -




Annexure - I1

FORM NO. AOC -2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3} of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014,

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arms length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at Arm’s length basis: Nil

2. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis : All related party
transactions as covered u/s 188 of the Act were entered into during the period prior to 1/4/2015.
Therefore making any further disclosures in Form AOC-2Z does not arise.




Annexure II1
Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2020
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the
Companies (Appeointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Manipal Finance Corporation Limited
REGD. OFFICE: "MANIPAL HOUSE "
MANIPAL - 576104 (Udupi Dist.)

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Manipal Finance
Corporation Limited (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided me/us a reasonable basis for evaluating the
corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon,

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms
and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in
our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year
ended on 31% March, 2020 complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and
compliance- mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by Manipal Finance Corporation Limited for the financial
year ended on 31st March, 2020 according to the provisions of;

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ("SCRA") and the rules
made thereunder;

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Reguiations and Bye-laws framed
thereunder;

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations
made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas
Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

5. The Reserve bank of India Act 1934 and all guidelines and prudential
norms framed thereunder to an extent applicable;

6. The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act’) viz. :-

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Enforced from 1st
December, 2015);

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider
Trading) Regulations, 1992 (tili 14th May, 2015) and The Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015 (Enforced from 15th May, 2015);



¢} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option
Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Issue and Listing of Debt
Securities) Regulations, 2008;

fy The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue
and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the
Companies Act and dealing with client;

g} The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity
Shares) Regulations, 2009; and

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Buyback of Securities)
Regulations, 1998;

Central Excise Act, 1944
Customs Act, 1962
Income Tax Act, 1961
10. Karnataka Tax on Professions, Trade, Callings & Employment Act, 1976
11. Employee Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952
12. The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972
13.Employee State Insurance Act, 1948
14, Factories Act, 1948
15. Payment of Bonus Act, 1972
16. Minimum Wages Act, 1948
17.The Payment of Wages Act, 1936
18. The Trade Unions Act, 1926
19, Workmen’s Compensation Act, 1923
20.Industrial Disputes Act, 1947
21. Maternity Benefits Act, 1961
22.Sexual Harassment at Workplace (Prevention) Act, 2013
23. Contract Labour {Regulation & Abolition} Act, 1979
24.The Apprentices Act, 1961 .
25. Equal Remuneration Act, 1976
26.The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986
27.Industrial (Development & Regulation) Act, 1951 —

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of
the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above except
to the extent as mentioned below:




1. The Company has not published audited financial resufts in news papers as
per the provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) 2015 for the financial year ended 31 .03.2020.1t is clarified
by the company stating that the Company has not published the same due
to exemption notification issued by SEBI following outbreak of COVID-19

Pandemic.

2. The company is a defaulter for non-payment of deposits/Debts accepted
from the public as per the terms of approval in compliance of the
provisions of section 58A of the erstwhile companies Act 1956 and the
companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules 1975. No legally approved
scheme is in force for repayment of deposits/Debts accepted from the
public. As observed from the records, the company has repaid
Deposits/Debts to the tune of Rs.6,96,66,000 during the financial year
ended 31.03.2020.

3. The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with minimum
strength as per section 149(1)(a) of the companies Act 2013. Pursuant to
section 149(4) of the companies Act 2013 read with Rule 4 of the
Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules 2014, there
has to be at least 02 persons to be appointed as Independent Directors on
the Board of the Company. However, it is noticed that, the company has
appointed only one Independent Director on the Board of the Company.

4. With respect to retirement of Directors by rotation, the company has not
fulfilled the requirement of the provisions of section 152 (6)(a) of the
companies Act 2013.

We further report that

With respect to convening of Board meetings, adequate notice is given to all
directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and
obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through and there were no dissenting members for
any item.

-

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and
ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that we could not physically verify  few
documents/registers/returns due to Lockdown situation in relation to outbreak of
Pandemic Covid-19 and I have relied up on the soft copies/information shared
with us.

We further report that during the audit period there were no instances of




a. Public/Right/Preferential issue of shares / debentures/sweat equity, etc.

b. Redemption / buy-back of securities

c. Major decisions taken by the members in pursuance to section 180 of the
Companies Act, 2013

d. Merger / amalgamation / reconstruction, etc.

e. Foreign technical collaborations

Sd/-

Ramachandra Bhat S,
Company Secretary
FCS No.:4441

C P No.:5421

UDIN No.: F004441B001302342

Place: Bangalore
Date: 25.11.2020

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as
Annexure A and forms an integral part of this report.




‘ANNEXURE A’

To,

The Members,

Manipal Finance Corporation Ltd.

REGD. OFFICE: "MANIPAL HOUSE "
MANIPAL - 576104 (Udupi Dist.)

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of
the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial
records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to
obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the
Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct
facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and
practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records
and Books of Accounts of the Company.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about
the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of
the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

sd/-

Ramachandra Bhat S,
Company Secretary
FCS No.:4441

C P No.:5421

UDIN No: F004441B001302342

Date: 25.11,2020
Place: Bangalore




WHOLE TIME DIRECTOR/ CFO CERTIFICATION

To

The Board of Directors
Manipal Finance Corporation Ltd,
Manipal

We, Managing Director appointed in terms of the Companies Act, 2013 and Chief Financial Officer of
the Company certify to the Board that:

(a) We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statements for the year and that to

the best of our knowledge and belief.
(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or

contain statements that might be misleading.
(ii)  these statements together present a true and fair view of the listed entity’s affairs and are in
compliance with existing accounting standards, laws and regulations.

(b) To the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions are entered into by the Company during
the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.

(c¢) That we accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls and that we have
evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the Company.

(d) We have indicated to the Auditors and Audit Committee:

(1) No significant changes have taken place in internal control process during the year.
(i)  No significant changes in accounting policies during the year.

For Manipal Finance Corporation Ltd

Sd/- Sd/-
T Sanjay Pai T Narayan M Pai
Chief Financial-Officer Managing Director
DIN:00101633)

Place: Manipal
Date: 25/11/2020




ANNEXURE-1V

CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 20135)

To,

The Members

MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
Manipal House

Manipal-576104

[ have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of
MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORTION LIMITED having (CIN: L65910KA1984PL.C005988) and having
registered office at “Manipal House”, Manipal - 576104 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced
before me by the Company for the purpose ofissuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation34(3) read
with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 20135,

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (includingDirectors
Identification Number (DIN) status atthe portal (www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations
furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify thatnone of the Directors on the Board of the
Company as stated below for the financial year ending on 31% March 2020, have been debarredor disqualified
from being appointed or continuing as Directors ofcompanies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India,
Ministry of Corporate Atfairs, or any such other Statutory Authority.

SLNO. | Name DIN Date of
Appointment in
Company*

1 Mr T Narayan M Pai 00101633 01/01/2008

2 Mr Basti Ashok Pai 08136975 30/05/2018

3 Mrs Vinoda Chandappa Sherigar | 07224755 29/06/2015

*the date of appointment is as depicted in the MCA Portal.

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuityof every Director on the Board is the responsibility of
themanagement of the Company. Our responsibility is toexpress an opinion on these based on our verification.
Thiscertificate is neither an assurance as to the future viabilityof the Company nor of the efficiency or
effectiveness withwhich the management has conducted the affairs of theCompany.

Sd/-

Ramachandra Bhat S,
Company Secretary
FCS No.:4441

C P No.:5421

Place: Bangalore
Date: 25.11.2020 UDIN number F004441B001302584




INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION
LIMITED (CIN: L65910KA1984PLC0O05988) (“the Company”), which comprises the Balance Sheet as at
31" March 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss {including Other Comprehensive income), the
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “the Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us,except for the effect of the matter described in the Basis of Qualified Opinion paragraph, the
aforesaid Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with theindian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, {“Ind AS”} and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, the profit and total
comprehensive income and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. We draw attention to Note No. 27.01 of the financial statements. The Company has incurred
losses and its majority of funds are blocked in Non Performing Assets, raising a doubt about the
Company to continue as a going concern, The Company has presented a scheme of arrangement for
restructure of liabilities as detailed in Note No. 13.01 of the financial statements and subsequently
withdrawn the same, for reasons given therein. The Company is exploring the possibility of
presenting the new scheme of arrangement, as detailed in the aforesaid Notes. The account,
however have been prepared on a “going concern basis” in view of management perception as
detailed in Note No. 27.01 as aforesaid. However we are unable to comment on the ultimate
realisability of Company’s assets including the Property, Plant and Equipment under lease.
Accordingiy we are also unable to comment on the Company’s ability to settle its debts/liahilities
(including Deposits, Subordinated debts and Secured Redeemable Debentures.)

2. We draw the attention to Note 13.01 of the Financial Statements. The Company has stopped (i)
repayment of matured debentures & matured subordinated debts and {ii) payment of interest on
. debentures and subordinated debts from 1% day of July 2002 and proposed a scheme of
arrangement before the Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka, as referred to in the aforesaid Note
{which is since withdrawn and we are informed that the Company is exploring the possibility of
presenting a new scheme of arrangement). Further the Company has also stopped repayment of
deposits matured for repayment from the aforesaid date. All the debts of the Company i.e.




debentures, subordinated debts and deposits are matured for repayment. The Company has
provided for interest on deposits/debentures/debts up to 30™ June 2002 and not thereafter.

There are also many instances of settlement of debentures, debts and public deposits at the
discounted rates with partial/full waiver of interest, which has been done with mutual consent. We
are also informed that the remaining depositors/ debenture holders / debt holders have approached
the Company for settiement of the dues and the Company is in the process for the same.

As per the information given to us various consumer courts (including the Appellate
Authorities/Courts acting under the Consumer Protection Act) have passed the orders, for the
repayment of certain deposits/debentures/debts with interest and other costs. The detailed
information on these orders have not been made available to us. However we are informed that the
Company has settled the dues of such customers in many cases, which also includes settlement at
discounted rates with partial/full waiver of interest and many of the remaining such persons have
approached the Company for settlement.

We draw attention to the Statement made by the Management of the Company in Note No. 13.01 of
the Financial Statement which is as follows: “Considering the facts that the Company has settled the
dues of depositors/debenture holders/debt holders at the discounted rates as stated above, that
the remaining customers have approached the Company for settlement of their dues, that the
orders issued by the various consumer courts including the appellate authorities/courts therein,
that the Company has settled the many of such consumer court cases, that the total debts of the
Company have reduced considerably because of settlement as aforesaid and that the Company is
exploring the possibility of framing the new scheme of arrangement, it is not feasible for the
Company to ascertain accurately its liability on any given date”.

Considering all the facts as given above, we qualify our opinion that it is not feasible for us to
ascertain accurately the liability of the Company as on the date of the Balance Sheet.

We conducted our audit of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143{10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Financial Statements under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
the Financial Statements. :

Emphasis of matter:

1. We draw the attention to Note 17.01{b) of the Financial Statements. The Company during
the vyear with a view towards restructuring its liabilities has settled
deposits/debentures/subordinated debts at discounted rates. The same has been done with
due consent of the parties to deposits, debentures and debts. The interest write back arising
out of such settlement is considered as Exceptional Income in the Statement of Profit and
Loss. Principal write back arising out of such settlement is considered as capital receipt and
taken directly to Capital Reserve (viz: Capital Reserve 2) in the Balance Sheet. This has been
done as per the accounting policy followed by the Company, as stated in Note no. Il {m) of




‘Significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates and judgements’. The
Company had made similar settlements during the earlier years also, by giving the similar
accounting treatment. Our opinion is not modified in this matter.

2. We draw attention to Note 27.17 of the Financial Statements. The Company has earned
Profit during the year and also during immediate previous financial year i.e. year ending 31st
March 2019 due to Exceptional income as disclosed in Note 26. Qur opinion is not modified

in this matter.

3. We draw attention to Note 27.16 of the financial statements, as regards to the management
evaluation of COVID-19 impact on the future performance of the Company. Our opinion is
not modified in this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Except for the matter described in the ‘Basis for Qualified Opinion’ and ‘Emphasis of Matter’ section,
we have determined that there are no other key audit matters to communicate in our report.

Other Information (other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon)

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to Board’s Report,
Corporate Governance Report (including shareholders information) and Schedule to Balance Sheet
of a Non-Banking Financial Company (as required in terms of Paragraph 9BB of Non-Banking
Financial Companies Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 1998) but does not include
thefinancial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The above information is expected to be
made available to us after the date of this auditors’ report.

Cur opinion on thefinancial statements does not cover the other information and we will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with thefinancial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, the Corporate Governance
Report (including shareholders information) and Schedule to Balance Sheet of a Non-Banking
Financial Company (as required in terms of Paragraph 9BB of Non-Banking Financial Companies
Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 1998), if we conclude that there is a material
misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with
governance.

|




Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters in section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total comprehensive
income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies {Indian Accounting Standards} Rules, 2015 as
amended.This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of thefinancial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing thefinancial statements, the Board of Directors is responsibie for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends
to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

ThoseBoard of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of theFinancial Statements

Our ohjectives are to cbtain reasonable assurance about whether thefinancial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: .

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatements of the Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
" procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we




are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the Financial
Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Ourconclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

*+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Financial Statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of
the Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in {i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our
work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Financial Statements,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding the independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where, applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
'rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we
give in the “Annexure A", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable.




2. As required by the Master Direction DNBS PPD.03/66.15.001/2016-17 dated 29.09.2016
(RBI/DNBS/2016-17/48) issued by the Reserve Bank of India, Department of Non-Banking
Supervision Central Office we will be giving a statement of matters specified in paragraph 3(A) &
3(B) of the order at a later date.

3. Interms of press release issued by Reserve Bank of India dated 27.06.2001, we state that:

a) The Certificate of Registration as issued by the Reserve Bank of India is not in force, since same
was cancelled during December 2004.

b) The Company has not obtained credit rating.

c) The capital adequacy ratio is negative and accordingly the Company’s Loans, advances and
investments are above the credit exposure limits.

d) The Company has not filed the prudential returns and annual returns as per revised directives.
However the Company has filed such returns as per the directives as prevailed till 31st March
2011 i.e prudential returns on half yearly basis and annual return once a year.

e) The public deposits are matured for repayment, but remained unpaid by the Company. However
the company has settled some of the deposits at discounted rates without interest. The Company
has not provided/paid interest on deposits after 30th June 2002.

f) The Company has not created floating charge in favour of the depositors, on the statutory liquid
assets invested.

g} The Company has not closed any of its branches during the year. Therefore the question of
making any comments therein does not arise.

4. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)
(b}

(c}

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Statement of Changes in Equityand Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014,

Our Qualifications as given under paragraph titled “Basis for gualified opinion” may have
adverse effect on the functioning of the Company, if the management perception as detailed
in note 27.01 of financial statement does not materialize. However our abservation as given
under paragraph titled “Emphasis of matter” will not have adverse effect on the functioning
of the Company.

The gualification/observations relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters
connected therewith are as stated in the “Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph” and
“Emphasis of Matter paragraph” above




(g) The Management of the Company is of the opinion that its directors are not disqualified u/s
164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the reasons as stated in Note 27.11of the financial
statements. Accordingly the directors have given thewritten representations that they are
not disqualified to be the directors of the Company u/s 164{2) of the Companies Act, 2013,
which has been taken on record by the Board of Directors. Accordingly, we are not
expressing opinion on the aforesaid aspect.

(h) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”. Our report expresses aqualified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial contrals over financial reporting.

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in Auditors’ Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended :

The Company has not paid any managerial remuneration to its directors, other than sitting
fees.In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration (i.e. sitting fees)so paid by the Company to its directors during
the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

(i) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditors’ Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,as amended, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has stated vide 27.10 and 27.18 of the financial statement that the
impact of pending litigations on its financial position is not ascertainable for the
reasons as stated in the aforesaid notes.

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivatives contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses, which has been confirmed by the
management vide note 27.19 of the financial statement.

ili.  The Company has not transferred any amount to the credit of Investor Education and
Protection Fund during the year under audit, for the reason as given by the
management vide Note 13.01 and 27.20 of financial statement. Accordingly
commenting on delay in transferring the amounts to the aforesaid fund does not arise.

For SRIRAMULU NAIDU & CO
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Firm's Registration Number: 0089755
Place: MANIPAL
Date : 24" July, 2020
Sd/-
CA Sriramulu Naidu
PARTNER
Membership Number: 018244

UDIN: 20018242AAAAGC7813
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ANNEXURE “A” TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Issued to the Members of
MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED)
REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 1 UNDER THE HEADING

“REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” OF EVEN DATE

As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order 2016 (hereinafter referred to as “the order”),
issued by the Central Government under section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013, and on the basis
of such checks as we considered appropriate, and according to the information and explanations given
to us, we further report that

1.a

—

b)

c)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets i.e. Property, Plant and Equipment.

We draw attention to Note 27.14 of the financial statements. According to the information
and explanations given to us the fixed assets i.e. Property, Plant and Equipmentother than
those under lease, have been physically verified by the management during the
period and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification ascompared to
available records. In respect of leased assets physical verification has not been done during
the year.

According to the information given to us and on the basis of our examination, all title deeds
of free hold immovable properties are held in the name of the company. The title deeds of
lease hold immovable properties are supported by Memorandum of agreement entered into
with the lessor. We are informed that the original title deeds in respect of immovable
properties of land and buildings (both freehold and lease hold), whose title deeds have been
pledged as security for debentures, are lying with the Debenture Trustee, as evidenced by the
records produced before us and accordingly we have given our report as above, based on the
examination of copies of the above said documents.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the inventories which consist of
shares and securities have been physically verified by the management during the year at
reasonable intervals. No material discrepancy was noticed on physical verification of stocks
by the management as compared to book records.

As per the information and explanation given to us, the company during the year has not
granted loans, secured or unsecured to/from companies, firms, LLP or other parties covered
in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act. Hence further commenting on clause
(iii) of para 3 of the said order does not arise.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not given loans,
made any investments or provided any guarantee or security during the year under audit.
Accordingly the question of reporting on compliance of section 185 and 186 of the Act does
not arise. Therefore the paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us the Company has
complied with the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of india, the provision of Section 73




7.a)

to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013, Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules 2014 and Non
Banking Financial Companies (Reserve Bank Directions} with regard to acceptance of deposit
from public subject to the exception of renewal of deposits up to 18.01.2000 with maturity
dates falling beyond 31* December, 2003, nonpayment of principal/ interest as and when it
became due. Our other observations are being made in main audit report under the head
‘Basis for qualified opinion”. However no fresh deposits have been accepted/renewed during
the year under audit. We are informed by the management that the company has not
received any order by Company Law Board or National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve
gank of India or any Court or any other Tribunal in respect of deposits, except the orders
from various Consumer Courts {including the Appellate Authorities/Courts acting upon under
Consumer Protection Act) regarding repayment of proceeds of debentures/debts/deposits
with interest and other costs. The detailed information on these are not made available to us
Therefore we are not in a position to comment on the compliance of aforesaid orders.
However we are informed that the Company has settled the dues of many of such cases,
which also includes settlement at discounted rates. The Company has also received the order
from Reserve Bank of India during December 2004, cancelling the certificate of registration.

The Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost records under clause (d) of
Sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore the question of making
further comments therein does not arise.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the company is regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues (i.e. provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income tax, goods and services tax, customs duty and other material statutory dues
applicable to it) with the appropriate authorities, and there are no arrears of autstanding
statutory dues as at the last day of the financial year concerned for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

According to the records of the company there are no dues of Sales Tax, Income Tax, Custom
Duty, Service Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Excise Duty, Value added tax which have not been
deposited due to any dispute.

Based on our audit and according to the information and the explanations given to us, we are
of the opinion that the company has during the year defaulted in payment of dues to the
debenture holders amounting Rs. 5,891thousands (P Y Rs. 24,085thousands). Interest on
debentures not paid/provided since 1*' day of July 2002. However a scheme of arrangement
was submitted before the Hon’ble High Court of Karnataka to repay the debenture with
interest thereon in the manner mentioned in the Note No. 13.01 to the financial statements.
But the scheme is since withdrawn and the Company is exploring the possibility of presenting
a new scheme of arrangement, as detailed in Note No.13.01 as aforesaid.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, N0 moneys were
raised by the Company by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments) during the year under audit. The Company has also not raised any term loan
during the year under audit. Hence further commenting on clause (ix) of para 3 of the said
order dees not arise.




10.

11.

1z.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Based on the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given to us, we
report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of such case by the
management.

According to the information and explanation given to us, no managerial remuneration has
been paid during the year under audit. Therefare the clause (xi) of para 3 of the order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii} of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
Section 177 and 188 of the Act wheraver applicable and the details of such transactions have
been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on cur examination of
the records of the Company, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him. Therefore, the question of compliance with Section
192 of the Companies Act, 2013 does not arise. Accordingly, the paragraph 3(xv) of the Order
is not applicable.

The Company was registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
However The Certificate of Registration as issued by the Reserve Bank of India is not in force,
since same was cancelled during December 2004,

For SRIRAMULU NAIDU & CO
Chartered Accountants
Registration Number: 008975S

Sd/-

Place: Manipal CA Sriramulu Naidu
Date: 24™ July, 2020 Partner

Membership No: 018244
UDIN: 20018244AAAAGC7813




ANNEXURE “B” TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Issued to the Members of MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED)
REFERRED TO IN PARAGRAPH 3{h) UNDER THE HEADING
“REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS"” OF EVEN DATE

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause {h) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Manipal Finance
Corporation Limited (“the Company”) as of 31" March 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the yvear ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internai Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controis based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI'). These responsibilities include design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
cenduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is te express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting {the “Guidance Note”) and the
standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

{2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention of timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

inherent Limitation of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management averride of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Basis for issue of qualified opinion

We draw attention to Note 27.14 of the Financial Statements. The Company has not verified the
Fixed Assets under lease falling under the head “leased machineries and equipment” & “leased
vehicles and furniture” of Note 9 of the Financial Statement.

Qualified Opinion

in our opinion except for the effect of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
paragraph,the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31°' March 2020, based on the internal controls over financial reporting criteria
established by the company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants Of India.

For SRIRAMULU NAIDU & CO

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
Registration Number: 0089755

PLACE: MANIPAL

DATE :24" luly, 2020
sd/-

CA SRIRAMULU NAIDU
Partner

Membership Neo. 018244
UDIN: 20018244AAAAGCT813
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MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
MANIPAL HOUSE, MANIPAL - 576 104
CIN: L65910KA1984PLC005988
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2020

(Rs. in th ds)

. Asat At at As at
ParGeulars Note | Maren 31,2020 | March 31,2000 | aprilo, 2018
ASSETS
{1) Financial Assets
{a} Cash and Cash Equivalents | 3,355 1,933 2,049
{b) Bank Balances other than {a) above 2 1191 1,124 1.067
{¢) Denvanve Financial Insmuments - - -
1d) Recaivables
{1} Trade Receivables 3 - - -
{iny Qther Receivables - -
{e} Loans 4 - - -
1) Iy estments 5 5809 6,809 0,869
() Other Financial Assets o 500 T62 1,668
‘T'otal Financial Asscis 11,921 11,638 11,653
{2) Non-Fimancial Asscts
{a) Inventories - - -
(b} Current Tax Assets {Met) 7 301 322 340
(] Deforred Tax Asscts {Ielp - - -
(d) Investment Property 8 2,203 2.5M 2,705
() Biologieal Assets other than learer Planis - - -
{1} Property. Plant and Couipment 9 6,777 3988 9434
() Capital Work-m-Progress - - -
{h} [ntangible Asets under Development - - -
(1) Gioodwall - - -
{)) Other Inrangibte Assets - - -
(k) Other Non-Financial Assets 10 640 290 582
Total Non-Financial Assets 10,427 12,401 13,061
Total Assets 12,348 23,089 24,7114
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
{1} Financial Liahilities
(a) Denvative Financial Instruments - -
by Pavables
(11 ‘I'tade Payables
- Total curstanding dues of micro enterpnses and small enterprises - -
- Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 11 338 341 270
{1} Other Payables
- Totgl pwistanding dues of micro enmerprises and small emerprises - - -
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than ricro enterprises and small enterprises - - -
{c) Debt Securities - - -
(di Borrowings {Other than Debt Securities) - -
{2) Deposits - - -
(1) Subordinated Liabilities 12 29,500 29,500 29.5G0
i} Other Financiz) Liabilities 13 134,502 208.806 224207
Total Financial Liabilities 164,340 238,647 253,977
{2) Non-Financial Liabilities
[a} Current Tax Liabilities (Net) - - -
(11 Provisions 14 4] 04 104
{c) Deterred Tax Liabilities {Net) - - -
() Onher Non-Financial Liabiliies 15 40,105 40,725 40,756
Total Non-Financial Liabilities 40,193 40,819 40,860
EQUITY
{a} Lquity Share Capital 16 83,810 83,810 83.810
{by (ther Equiry 17 (263,995} " {340, 187) {353,933
Total Equity {182,185) (256,377 {270,123)
Total Liabilities and Equity 22,348 23,089 24,714

As per our repart of even date

For Mfs Sriramulu Naidu & Co
Chartered Accounranes

Firm Registration Wo : GORDTSS

Sd--

A Sriramuolu Naidu

Parten

Membership No. - 018244
UDIN: 20018244A0AAGCY813
Manipal

July 24, 2020

Notes | to 27 and "Significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates and judgements'

forn an intepral part of the financial statements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Munipal Finance Corpuration Limited

Sdi-

T. Nurayan M Pai

Managing Director
DIN: 00101633

Sdi-
T. Sanjay Pai
Chief Finance Officer

Nanipa!
July 24, 2020

Sdr-

Yinoda Sherigar
Diirector
DiN: 07224755

Sdi-

Shipra Agrawal
Company Secretary
M. Noot A37076

Manipal
July 24, 2020




MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

MANIPAL IHOUSE, MANIPAL - 576 104
CIN: L65910R A 1984PLCU0S958

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(Rs. in thousands

\ : For the year ended For the year ended
Particulurs Note | march 31,2020 March 31, 2019°
1 Revenue from Operations:
(1) Imerest Income 18 67 79
{it)  Dhvidend Income 19 527 237
{iii}  Rental Income 20 1,934 1.538
fivy Feesand Commission Income - -
(v)  Net Gain on Fair Value Changes - -
(vi)  Net Gain on Derecopmition of Financial Instruments under Amortised Cost Catepory - -
{viiy  Sale of Products (including Excise Duty) - -
{viny  Sale of Services - -
tix)  Others - -
Total Revenue from Operations (1) 1,518 1.854
Il Other lncome 21 260 525
T Total Income (1) 2,788 1379
IV Expenses:
(i3 [inance Cosls 22 1,279 513
(i) Fees and Commission Expense - -
(i} Net Loss on Fair Value Changes - -
{iv} Net Ldss on Derecopnition of Finaneial Instruments under Aunertised Cost Catepory - -
(v)  Impainnent of Financial Instruments - -
(viv  Cost of Materials Consumed - -
(vii) Purchases of Stock-in-Trade - -
{viiiy Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade and Work-in-Progress - -
fix} Employec Benefits Expenses 23 1,314 1.042
(x} Depreciation. Amertisation and Lmpairment 24 621 650
{xi)  Other [xpenses 25 3,05t 1,877
Total Expenses (1V} 6,265 4,082
v Loss before Exceptional 1tems and Tax (1I-1V) (3477) o7
V] Exceptional Items - Income (Net} 26 70,237 10,131
Vil Profirbefore Tax (V-V} 66,760 8,418
vl  Tax Expense:
{1} Current Tax - -
(2) Defetted Tax - -
Net Tax Expense - -
IX Profit for the year from continuing operations (VI1I-¥ 111} 66,760 5,428
X Profit from discontinued operations before tax - -
X1 Tax Expense of discontinued operations - -
X1 Profit from discontinued vperations {after tax) (X-XI) - -
X1l Profit for the year (IX+X11) 66,764 3,428
XIV  Other Comprehensive Income:
A (i) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to Statement of Profit and Loss
- Remeasurement of Defined Employee Benefit Plans 26A 87 10
(11) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss - -
Subtatal {A) 87 10
B (i) ltems that will be teclassified subscquemtly to Stalement of Profit and l.oss
- Fair Valug Gain on Financial Assers carried at FYTOC] - -
(it} Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified 10 Profit or Loss - -
Subtotal (B) - -
Total Other Comprehensive Income/( Laosses) (A+B) (X1V) 87 10
v T‘olal Cnmpr.ehensive [ncome for the year (XITI+XTVHComprising Profit and Other 6,847 8,438
Comprehensive Income for the year)
X¥1 FEarnings per equity share {for continuing vperations) (Rs 10/ each fully paid)
{1) Basic 26B 1.97 1.0
{23 Dilwed 26B 7.97 1.01
NVIl Earnings per equity share (for discontinuing aperations) (Rs 10/- each fully paid)
(1) Basic 26B 7.97 1.01
{23 Diluted 268 7.97 L0l
XVl Earnings per equity share {for continuing & discontinued operations) (Rs 10/- each .
Tully naidl
(1] Basic 268 7.97 1.
(27 Diluted 26B 7.97 1.01

Notes | to 27 and “Significan! accounting policies and key accounting estimales and judgements’ form an integral part of the financial staiements

As per our repert of even date
For M/s Sriratiulu Naidu & Co
Chartered Accountants

Finn Registration No. : 0089755

Sd/-
T. Narayan M Pai
Managing [Dhrector

Sd0-

CA Sriramulu Xaidu

PPartmer

Menthership No. - 018244
UDIN: 20018244A8A8GCTB13
Manipal

July 24, 2020

Sd/-
T, Sanjay Pai
Chief Finance Qfficer

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Manipal Finunce Corporation Limited

DIN: 00101633

Manipal
July 24, 2020

Sd-
Vinodu Sherigar
Director
DIN: 07224755

Sd/-
Shipra Agrawal
Company Secretary
M. No. : A37076

Manipal
July 24, 2020




a. Equity share capital

MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED

MANIPAL HOUSE. MANIPAL

CIN: LESYLORA |4 PLOC OSSR

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

576 114

Sl -

CA Seiramuly Naidu

Paruner

Membership No U124
UDIN: 2001 B244AAAAGTTELS
Manipal

July 24, 2024

DIk

HILF[ 633

T. Sanjay Pai
Chief Finange (ffieer

Manipal
Julv 24,2020

DIN- (7224755

St
Shipra Agramal
Company Scemelan
M. Mo AT
Manupal
July 14 Z02ib

Particulars Nurnber of Shares | Rs. in thousandy

Bulance as a1 April Ik, 2018 *_IN1.961 RIKLN
Bes in cquity share capital dositg the year - -
Balante us at March 31, 219 BI85 A3
Changes in equiry sharc capital duning the sear - -
Balance us at March 31, 2021 ¥ 380961 HIE10
Is, Hher equity
Ra. in thousands
Reser e and surplus
® Eaguity Exchange ﬁa.:wﬁ..iﬁ:.-n_. ive | Money
. Equity component el instraments N Effective differences on
Sare agglication § o o ipouna - Srvagh Other | FoITUmEnts ion of | Revaleation]  transtating it tncome - | rocelved
Farticutars maney pending ootpaand " | stmtary | Capitat [Securities| Otber | Geeral | Ressined | (JTPRLCC | through Other Lagwetil i ogon | Changesintuie [ against | Totn
allotment eanan Reserves | Reserve { Proovum ] Resenes | Reserves | Eamings e ® | comprenenive | -° e . Value of Befined | share
ingtrumends 3 ! Income Hedges statements of %
fncome forcign vperation Benefit Flan - | marrants
Gratuity
Ralance as at April 01, 2IM% - - HO0H | 225209 RS - 190G | aldusy - - - - - - - (353541 )|
Changes im accounting policy ‘pror perod crmors - - - - - - -3 - - . - - - 8
Restated balance as al Apeil 01, 2HE ENLLS 135,20 24,995 . 1,9 | (614 043) - - . - . - - {353,933)
Froiin for the scar - - - - - - - R4 - - - - - - R.AZR
Other comprehensn g meome for the acar. net of ingcon - - - - - - . - - - - - 14 16
Tutal comprehensive ineome for the year - - - - - - - BA2H - - - - Ll - BTN
Dividends - - - - - - . - - - - - - - .
Translers - - - - - - - . - - - . - - 30
Other changes - - - - - - - - . . - - - - - -
Balange ax at March 31, 2014 - - 4000 | 230517 IBHUE - 1.006 | (1605615) - - - - - i - (34187}
Profit for fhe vear - - - - - - £ifr, Tdb - - - . - - - 6 TG0
(vhier comprehensive income for the vear, net of income tas - - - - - - - - - - . - - AT - H7
Total comprehensise in for the year - - - - - 56, TR - - . - - a7 . 66843
[ idends . - - - - - - - - - . - . - -
Translers - - - 7348 - - - - - - - - - - 7345
{ther changes - - - . . - - . - - - - . - .
Balance as at March 31, 2020 - - A IWH 23T HED X253 - 1,906 { [538.855) - - - - - 97 - (265,995}
HMotes 1 1o 27 and 'S cant accaunting pol nyg estimaies and judgaments Tonm an inkeyral pant of the hnanacial stilementy
As per vur nepon of even date
For M/y Sriramulu Naldu & Co For and on behall ol the Board ot Diecciors ol
C harlered Accountants Manipa! Fiaance Corporation Li
Firmi Registration No. ; 0089783
Sd- 5d-
T. Nurmyan M Tai Vinoda Sherigar
Managing Dircctor Durcetor




MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
MANIPAL HOUSE, MANIPAL - 576 104
CIN: L65910KA 1984PLCO05988

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

t‘ i . 9
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Mamhyiil, 2020 Marchyjl, 2019
| CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITES
Profit before tax 66,760 8.428
ind AS adjusiments
Rental income (Ind AS adjustment} {51) (134)
Interest expense (Ind AS adjustment) 79 107
66,788 8.4
Exceptional items {70,237) {1013 1)
Interest income (67) {79
Dividend income (527) (237)
Interest on income tax refund (19 (1)
Depreciation. amortisation and impairment 621 650
Operating profit before working capital changes {3,441) (1.406)
Movements in working capital;
Decrease/([ncrease) in loans - -
Decrease/(Increase) in receivables, other financial assets and other-non financial assets 3.943 9624
Increase/(Decrease) in pavables (3) 71
Increase/{ Decrease) in other financial liabilities 26,300 R 186
Increase/{Decrease] in ather non-financial Liabilities (&) 67)
Cash generated from operations 26,791 16,408
Interest pad (836) (2.075)
Direct taxes paid (ner of refund} (47%) 18
Net cash flows fromAused in) vperating activities (A) 25,456 14,351
1 CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITES
Reciept / (Payment) of lease security deposit (9,000 256
Proceeds from Sale of Investment Property 61,000 -
Interest income B& 89
Decrease/(Increase) in bank deposits {67) (57)
Mvidend income 527 237
Decrease/(Increase) in investments - -
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing activitics {B) 52,546 515
11 CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITES
Increase/{ Decrease) in deposits/subordinated debts/debentures {76,580} {14.992)
Net cash flows fram/(used in) financing activities (C) (76,580) (14,992)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+() 1,422 {116}
Cush and cash equivalents at the beginning 1,933 2,049
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the vear 3,355 1,933

Notes 1 t0 27 and Significant accounting policies and key accounting estimates and judgements' form an integral part of the financial statements

NOTE: 1 Cash Flow Statement is prepared under Indirect Method us prescribed under ind AS 7.

IL. Cash And Cash Equivalents do not include Bank Deposits with Matunty period beyond 3 Months, Earmarked Deposits, Deposits Kept as Margin

Money.
i Refer Note 27.13 to Financial Statements for further disclosures in relation 1o Cash Flow Statement

AS per our report of even date

For MU/s Sriramulu Naidu & Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. : 0089758

Sdi-
CA Sriramulu Naidu
Fartner

Membership No. : 018244
UDIN: 20018244AAAAGC7813

Manipa Sd/- Sd/-
July 24,2020 T. Sanjay Pai Shipra Agrawal
Chief Finance Ofticer Company Secretary
M No. @ A37076
Mantpal Manipal
July 24, 2020 July 24, 2020

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Manipal Finance Corporation Limited

Sd/-

T. Naravan M Pai
Managing Director
DIN: 00101633

Sd/-

Vinoda Sherigar
Director
DIN: 07224735




MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
MANIPAL HOUSE, MANIPAL - 576 114
CIN: LO59T0KA 1984PLCHHISYNS
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCTI 31, 2020

|

(Rs. in thuuwands];

Sr Nu.

Particulars

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 29

Asat Aprib o1, 2018

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
{Retfer Note 1.401)

(a¥ Cash on hand 5 ) 3

[b) Balances with banks in currenl accounts 3,350 1,924 20

Tatal 3,355 1,933 2049 |
i

~Note L.01 Balances with banks earn interest at fixed rates. Cash and cash equivalents do not include term deposits kept with a maturity petind of Beyond 3 months,
carmarked balances with banks and bank deposits held as margin money or security against borrowings ete The same are being disclosed in Note Nao 7

below.

2. |OTHER BALANCES WITH BANKS
{Refer Note 2.01 & 2.02)
Ralances with banks in depuosit accounts 1,191 1,129 | u67
Total 1,191 t.124 1,067
Note 2.00  Fixed deposits with banks earn interest st fixed rates. Qut of the above,
a) Rs. 66 thousand {March 31, 2019- Rs. 66 thousand: April 01, 2018- Rs. 66 thousand) has been pledyed with the sales tax authoribies, and
b} Rs. 1125 thousand {March 31, 2019- Rs. 1,058 thousand, April 01, 2018- Rs_ | 001 thousand) has been kept as SLR with Reserve Bank of ndis and this
amaount includes interest accrued thergon.
Note 2,02 The fixed deposits as stated above have a maturity period of above 12 months, |
F
3. |TRADE RECEIVABLES P
{Refer Note 301 10 3.05) ‘
fa) Receivables considered good - seeured - - :
(b Recevables considered good - unsecured - ]
{c) Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk - unsecured - -
{d} Receivables - credit impaired - unsecured 20,134 602534 T
20134 [ORRRE] Tood
Less Allowance for impairment tass
(a) Sipiniticant increase in credit risk - - -
(b} Credit impaired 20,134 62 A5 7t
Taotal - - -
Note 3.01  The trade receivables include the due portion of lease and hire purchase, which are already matured.
Note 3.02  No wade receivable is due from ditectors or other ofTicers of the Company either severally o pointly with any other person No rade receisable s dug Tramn;
fitms or privale companies respectively, in which any director is partner, a director or a member :
Note 303 The balances in trade reeeivables are subject to confirmation. i

Note 3.4
Note 305

fFor the Company's impairmenl policy related to trade recetvables. reter note 27,12 of Financial statements
Refere Note 27.03 of Financials statements for disclosures regarding eredit risk

{Rs. in thousands}

More than 5 years past

Ageing of Trade Reecivables {(Before impairment allowance) -5 yeurs past due Jdate due date Total
March 31, 2020 - 200134 20054
March 31, 2019 - $2.5534 £ 3]
April 01, 2018 - 7601034 76154
Note: The balance in Trade Receivables have been fully provided for and therefore the carmying value im Nil.
) (Ry. i thousands|
Reconciliativn of impairment allowance March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 April 01, 2018
Opening impaitment allowance 62,534 763
Addition. (Reduction) during the year * (42,4004 (13500
Closing impairment allowance 20,134 $2.534 76015

* Addition or reduction during the vear Is on account of recoveries made and/or write olls




MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
MANIPAL HOUSE, MANIPAL - 576 104
CIN: L65910KA 1984PLCOOSY88

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(Rs. in thousands}

:; Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As st April 01, 2018
4. |LOANS
{Refer Note 4.01 to 4.00)
(A)
- Amortised Cost
(i) Bills discounted - 5.187 5187
(1) Term Inans 213,068 235927 235927
213,068 2411104 240014
Less: Impairment toss allowance 213,068 241114 240,114
Total (A) - - -
(B}
- Amortised Cost
(i) Securcd by tangible assets
Secured by book debis 1.932 1,932 1.932
{11} Unsecured 211,136 239,182 239,182
213068 241,114 2400104
Less: Impairment loss allowance 213,068 241,114 2414014
Total (B) - - -
()
- Loans in India
- Amortised Cost
(1} Others
Retail |.686 12,891 12.84]
Corporate 211,382 228223 228223
213.068 241,114 248004
Less: [mpairment loss allowance 213.068 241,114 241,114
Total (C) - - -

Note 4.01

Note 4.02

MNote 4.03
Note 4.04
Note 4.05
Note 4.06

The Company had assigned under an assignment deed certain debts and recoverables consisting inter alia stock on hire along with equal
liahilitics of the Company to the extent of Rs. 2,66,292 thousand on 30.0% 1998 1o Vedachala Electronics & Financial Services Private
Limited {VEFSPL). The Company had discharged the assigned habilities of VEFSPL on its failure to service the same in terms ol the
Assignment deed, which has resulted in Rs. 2.11.136 thousand {March 31, 2019- Rs. 2.1 1136 thousand: April 01, 2018- Ks 201430
thousand} receivable from VEFSPL. The Company based on the estimated recovery has made o provision of Rs. 211136 thausand
(March 31, 2019- Rs. 2,101,136 thousand; Aprit 01, 2018- Rs. 2.11.136 thousand) against the receivables of VEFSPL. The same has
been classified above as unsecured term loan from India, measured at amortised cost.

No Loans is due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or joinily with any other person. No Loans is duc Irom
firms or private companies respectively, in which any director is partnet, a director or a member.

The balances given above are subject to confimmation.

Refer note 27,12 of Financial statements for information regarding impairment of assets.

Refere Note 27.03 of Financials statements for disclosures regarding credit isk.
The disclosures required under section 186 (4) of Companies act 2013 are not applicable to a NBIFC

(Rs. in thousands)

Reconciliation of impairment allowance March 31, 2020 March 31,2019 April 01, 2048

Opening impairment allowance 241014 241114
Addition/{ Reduction) during the year * (28,048) -
Closing impairment allowance 213,064 241,114 241114

* Addition or reduction during the year is on account of recoveries made and/or write ofls,




MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
MANIPAL HOUSE, MANIPAL - 5376 144
CIN: Lo5910KAT984PLCONSYES
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMFENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDEDR MARCH 31, 2020
(Rs. in thousands)

Sr

Neo.
5. |INVESTMENTS

(Reter Note 5.01 to 5.04)

In India- carried at Fair Value throvgh Profit or Loss

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 | As at March 31, 2019 | As at April 01, 2618

{&) Fully paid equity shares (quoted) i ] |

{b) Fully paid equity shares (unguoted) 6.867 6 8067 i R 7
{¢) Investmenl in Preference Shares ] | |
Total 6,869 {- 6,369 6,869

Note 5.01 Out of the above, the fully paid equity shares (quoted) are held-for-trading and the fully paid equity shares (unquoted) and preterence
shares are held as long term investments.

Note .02 The Company received Rs. 327 thousand (2018-19- Rs. 237 thousund) as dividend from the above investments

Note 5.03 For the Company's policy on impaitment of investments, refer Note No. 2712 of Financial statements

(Hs. in thousands)

() Particulars [ As at March 31,2020 | As at March 31,2019 [ As at April 01, 2018
Equity Instruments (Quoted)
[CDS Limited {53,53! shares of Face Value Rs. 10 cach} * * *
Pramun Capital Market Services Limited (10,000 shares of) . R .
Face Value Rs. 10 each)
Arvind Limited (4 shares of Face Value Rs. 10 each) * * *
Modern Threads {1 Limited (150 shares of Face Valuc Rs. . . R
10 each)
Rajinder Steel Limited (100 shares of Face Value Rs 10 N R .
cach)
Lloyds Steel Industries Limited (68 shares of Face Value Rs. . |
10 each)
Uttam Value Steels Limited {300 shares ol Face Value Rs. | . . .
vach)
Sangeetha Granites Limied (300 shares of Face Value Rs. N . .
10 each)

i 1 1

(¥ nrarker value of these shares Is taken as ‘i’ since these shares are not actively traded)

[(3)] Equity Instruments {L/nqueted)
Manipal ‘H‘ousing Finance Syndicatc Limited (5.23,094 6.762 76 I
shares of Face value R, 10 each)

Kamataka Rubbers Limited (50 shares of Face Value Rs.
100 each)

Shamrao Vithal Co-operative Bank Limited {1,000 shares of 15

5 a5
Face Value Rs. 25 each) - - o
MPL Enterprises Lamited {13382 sharcs of Face Value of -
80 his 80
Rs 10 each)
6,367 6.867 0,867

[13] Preference Shares (Unquoted)

— Triveni Engincering & industries Ltd. {12% redeemable : : |
cumulative) {30 shares of Face Value Rs. 10 cach)

Note 5.04 | The above list of shares is to be considered as disclosure under Section 186(4) of the Companies Act 2013




MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
MANIPAL HOUSE, MANIPAL - 576 104
CIN: L65910KA1984PLCOGS988

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31. 2020

(Rs. in thousands)

Sr No. Particulars As at March 31, 2020 Asg at March 31, 201% As at April 01, 2018
6. |OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
{Refer Note 6,01 & 6.02)
Other receivables 506 762 1,668
Total 506 762 1,668
Note 6.01 The batance in ‘Other receivables' includes deposits kept in pursuance of orders of the Consumer Courts.
Note 6.2 1, Receivables is due from directors of other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person. No Receivables
is due from firms or private companies respectively, in which any director is partner. a director or a member.
7. |CURRENT TAX ASSETS (NET)
Advance [ncome Tax and TDS (net of provisions) 801 322 RED]
[net of provision for income tax Rs, 00 thousand (March 31, 2018
Rs. 00 thousand; April 0L, 2018- Rs. 00 thousand))
Total 801 322 340
8. [INVESTMENT PROPERTY
{Refer Nate .01 10 §.10)
Buildings
Gross Block
Opening Balance 2,705 2,705
Additions/Disposls {380} -
Closing Balance 2,325 2,705
Accumulated Depreciation and Impairment
Opening Balance 204 .
For the year 175 204
Additions/Disposals (257) -
Closing Balance 122 204
Net Block 2.203 2,501 2,705

Note 8.01 The original cost of Investment Property as on March 31, 2020 is Rs. 3.839 thousands (March 31. 2019- Rs. 5.393 thousand: April O1.

2018- Rs. 5,393 thousand)

Nute 8.02 The Company has no contractual obligations to purchase. construct or develap investment property. However. the respunsibilty for its
repairs, maintenance of enhancements is with the Company.
Note 8,03 Carrying value of Investment property pledged as collateral for liabilities or commitments as al March 31 2020015 Ra 414 housand
(March 31. 2019- Rs. 2,429 thousand; April 01, 2018- Rs. 2,584 thousand).
Note 8.04 [nvestment properties are leased out to tenants. Agreements provide for cancellation by cither party or contain clause for esealation and
renewal of agreements, lnvestment Property includes property agreed to be sold as detailed in Note No. 15,

Note 8.05 Refer Note 26 for Prafit on sale of Investment Property.

Note 8.06 Disclosures wilh regard to Measurement, Depreciation Method etc. of Investment property (s given vide sub-note (¢} of Significant
Accounting Policies, Key Accounting Estimates and Judgements
Note 8,07 Disclosures with regard to option exercised under Ind AS 101 i.e. the first time adoption, with regard to Investment property 15 given
vide sub-note {u) of Significant Accounting Policies, Key Accounting Estimates and Judgements
Note 8.08 Refer Note 27.12 of Financial statements for company's pelicy on impairment
Note 8.09 The management has not assessed the fair valuc of the the investment propertics considering the cost involved therein. However
management is of the opinion that the carrying vatuc does not exceed the fair value of the asset considering the fact that the invesiment
in property was made more than two decades ago and the value of the property has increased over the period.

(Rs. in thousands)

Note 8.10 Amounts recognised in Statemeat of Profit and Loss Year ended Year ended
for Investment Property March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rental income 1.934 1,538
Direct operating expenscs from properties that generated rental income 287 106
Profit from investment properties before depreciation 1,647 1432
Depreciation 175 24
Profit from investment propertics 1,472 1,228
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MANIPAL FINANCE CORFPORATION LIMITED

MANIPAL HOLSE. MANIPAL - 576 104
CIN: LaSII0KA 1Y PLCHISYES

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(Rs.inth [5)
Sr
4 . As at March 31, 2020 As at March 9 As at April H, 2018
N, PARTICULARS ; : : arch 3t 201 pril 41,
In. |3THER NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
tRefer Note 10.01 & 10.02}
Plan assel - Granny Fund 21 . .
(ther non-Ninancial a3gers SES 90 a0
Total 645 00 a8
Noe 1000 The halance 111 'Cher non-financial assers’ consists of deposit given far etectricify telephone. rent deposit etc
Noe 10,02 Assel i respect of gratuty fund represents the excess of far value of grajwty plan assets over present value of grahuty plan obligations as at vear and as calued o iadepender]
actuanal valuer
t1. [TRADE PAYARLES
(Reler Nete 11 01 & 11 02)
{at Total outstanding dues of migro enterprises and small enterprises - -
1b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than mucre enterprises and small enferprises 338 14 a5
Taotal 338 341 270
Note L1101
There are no autstanding dues to Micro and Small enicrprises as on the date of the Balance Sheet as disclosed i the abone nore Avverdmghe e sue ionmer dische s ot mad
as required under Para K to *General Instructions for prepazation of Balance Sheer” of Division I of Schedule [Lw Compames Act 2015 Dues 10 Micro and Sosalc: -
been determined to the extent such parties have been Wdentified on the hasis of infurmanon collected by the Company's manageiient This tas Been tetimd apen D e odine -
Note 1102 Balanees held under trade peyables as above are subject 1o confiemanon and reconailation
~
12, |SUBORDINATED LIABILITIES B
[Refer Note 12,01 to 12 03) ‘
1
Preference Shares other than those that quahify as Equine 29,500 28500 39 530 |
Total (&) 19,500 29 500 29500 |
1B}
- Liabilties in India
- Amaortised Cost
Prefercnce Shates other than those that qualily as Equiry 29.500 RN S
Total (B) 19,500 19,500 79,5041 :

Note 1241 :
29.50.000 Non-Cumulative Redoemable Prefercnce Shares were issued to Preference Shareholders of [7% Redeentable Cumulatvs Preference Sharchohders in comideranan al Ui

redempion o the fullowing dates. 20.00.000 Shares on 16th Tanuary 2001 & 9.50.000 Shares on 6th September 2001 Non-Cumulanyve Redeemaple Prefirence Shues shicl ve)
redeemable at par after the expury of 12 months but not later than 20 years from the respective dates of allotrient at the option of the hald=rs ol sucl shares by grvng 3 wnihs” nones
ar at the discretion of the Board af Directors. The shares are entitled for preferential night over dividend {before the equity sharcholdersh at the rate of %o, which 15 10 be proposed by
the Goard of Mirectars, whnch is subject 10 the approval of the sharsholders in the ensuing Anoual General Meehing, except i the case of payment of dividend a imerim dividend.
However, the shares are Non-Cumulative and therefore the shacehelders are poi eniited 10 carry forward the dividend of a vear to the fanheoming vears in cage the same 1 not
declared 1 a year In the exent of ligudatian, such shareholders are eligible o recerve the fage value [afier distnbution of all preferential sanounts} befure e distiluaon [T PR T
equity shareholders. Tn case the assers available are not sufficient to cover up the face value. then the same will be distributed in proportion to then shurcholduye 1f there 15 surplus,
avalable after distribution of all preferennal amoums

Note 1202 Details of sharehalders halding more than 5% of Preference shares:

Mr Naravan Pai T - 3,91.667 shares | Maech 31,2019 - 1.91 667 shares ¥ Sharehalding percentage - 1o 67%%, {March 2 LZ0 19 16 67%3) Mo Vepavudakahin N P« 401667 e
thlareh 31,2019 - 491,667 shares) (Sharsholding percentage - 16.67%, {March 31,2019- 10.67% D, Mr T Sanjay Pai- 391,607 shares{March 31,2019 . vl 507
shares ) $hareholdine percentage - 16 67%, {March 35 2019 16 6700 Mr T Sunil Paa- 490007 sharestMarch 31,2014 - 241 667 shares} {Shacchulding pocestage - e [E
{March 31,2009- 160.67%)), Mrs Sangecta Pai - 3,91 666 shares {March §1.2019 - 4.91 606 shares){Shareholding percentage - |6 O6%a, {Mach 312009 10 665011, Mies Prastha -
491,666 shares (March 31,2019 « 4,91 666 shares) (Sharchalding percemage - 16.66% (March 3.2019- 1o 66%a))

tAPRI 01, 2018 « Suniukha Teust, Manipal - 29,560,000 shares (Sharcholding percenage - 1D0%)

ber of shares

Note E2A3  Reconciliation of

g:
Particulars N of shares Ra. in thousands

11% Non-Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shaves :

Gpening balance as on Aprit 01 2018 2,030,000 Iu a0

Chatyges dunng the vear .

Closing Balance as on March 112019 SOWORN THAN0

Changes dunng the year | '

Clasing Balance as on March 31, 2020 2,950 0HH) ! """" 29 800
. |




MANIPAL FINANCE CORFORATION LIMITED
MANIPAL HOUSE, MANIPAL - 576 304
CIN; L65S910KA1984P L5988
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILI
(Refer Note [1.01 0 13.05)

In India

(23 Unpad matured deposits and interest accrued thereon S0 196 190
(b Unpaid ratured debentures and interest acerued thereon 5,891 24 083 35499
{c) Unpad subordinated liabalines and interest accrued thereon 534 144,477 L5643

{d) Accrued employvee benefit expense is 135 15
(2} Other financial liabilnies

ES

57,952 40,013 11634

Taotal

134,502 208,806 114,207

Nate 13.01

Nete 13,02

Node 1345

Note 1304

Note 1345

The Company stopped accepting/renewing deposiis, debentures and subordinated debts with effect from Juiy €1, 2002 Therefore and alsa considening the fact that sthe pubhic depouars
accepted by the Company are fully matured. the Company has not created a floatng charge on the nvested statutory Dgwd assets in Favour af the deposstons 0 jerns ol duegines,
1ssued by Reserve Bank of India

Dhwring the year ending March 31, 2605 a Scheme of Compromise and Arrangement under Section 391 of the Compames Act 1956 1o effect the restructure ef Cempins ' debis
particularly debentures and subordinated debis of the Company, was framed and presented before the Honorable High € ourt of Kamnataka Accordwagly, a meenng of the shareholdurs
debenturss halders and subordinaned debt holders was hald on April 20, 2005, The scheme as proposed had provided for paymeni of principal in a phased manner over 60 months fiom
the effective date and payment of interest accrued till June 30, 2002, within 72 months from the effeciive date. The scheme, as proposed, did nor provide for acerual of interest atter
Jith June 2002, {For the shove purpose the effective date means the date on which the order of the High Count of Kamataka sanctioning the Scheme off Arvangement s filed with the
Revistrar of Companies in Kamataka)

On July 10, 2009, the Honorable High Court of Kamataka directed the Company to submit the deizls of payments made to non-convertible debemture holders and subardinineet debi
holders from Apnl ©1, 2005, Accordmgly, the detals were furnished to the Honorable Court. It was subrmilted before the Honarable Court that the Company had settled substamial
portion of nen-convertible debentures and subordinated debis and it was therefore fell that the scheme requires to be changed hasvuig reyard o the senlements alreudy made and he
auanium of non-cenvertible debentures and subordinated debis remaining to be settled. Therefore, the Company proposed to withdeaw the schere of areangement from the Honaraale
High Court of Karnataka, with an aption to present a new scheme of arrangement  The Honoruble High Court of Karnataka peaminied the Company e swatiiekias she paeiien. with
iberty 1o file a fresh pettion, vide its order dated 28th QOctober 2009, Accordingly, the Company 15 exploring the possimhin of proposing a fresh penteon 1 be fled et he
Honorable High Court of Kamataka.

The tofal of the procipal sum and inlerest due in respect of public deposis/debenturesisubrodinated debts as on March 31, 2002 fre as on the last dawe of the finaseial ven
immediately preceding (he year i which the Company stopped payment of debts) was Rs.10,74.426 thousand. The Company has seuled major portion of the aforesmd dues from fime
to ime at dscounted rates {which includes senlement of principal at discounted rales and pantialifull waiver of interest) Qut of the aloresaid amount, @ sum of Rs 76,215 shousand
{March 31, 2019- Rs. 1.68,758 thousand, April 01, 2018 Rs 1.92,538 thousands) remans unpaid as on the date of the Balance Sheel. Therefore, the lability of the Company has|
reduced considerably over the period of time

The Comipany is confinwng to put more efforts on realisation of the dues, sale of assers eic. so that ns debts can be sentled at the earliest possible date The remaming|
depositors‘debenture holders/debt holders have approached the Company for settlerment of thesr dues and the Company is i the process of the same

Considering the sbove facls, the Company has not provided recogmsed for interest after June 30, 2002, on deposits/debentuies subordinated defns and interest on advances iak
such mstrumenis All the aforesaid deposiis/debsnturesisubordinated debts are fully matured for repayment Any interest paid over and above the proveson made oll Jane 3026
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as Finance Cost under Note No. 23

Considening the fact that {a) the Company has setled the dues of depositorsidebenture holders‘debr holdees a1 discounted rates as stated above (b the rensuning ustomers huaye
approached the Company for setdement of their dues (<) the orders issued by the various consumer courts including the appetlale avtharties’courts wherein the Company has sertied the
many of such consumer court cases (d) the total debts of the Company has reduced considerably because of senilement as aferesaid and {e) the Company 15 cxplonng the passibilib ofy
franung the new scheme of arrangement, it is not feasible for the Company 1o ascertain accurately 1ts labnliy on any given date

The Company has. in view of the above and also considenng the fact that thare are no unclamied babihities, considered that the matured debentures. watured deposis. maiured
subordimated debits and interest payable including unencashed inferest cheques on such deposits‘debentures‘debts are "ot due o be transfered 1o Investor Educanon and Protection)
Fund”

Unpaid secured non-converublke debeniures are secured by murtgage on Land and Buildings (Free hok and Lease hold) situated al Udupr District of State of Kamataka, State of Coa,
Nasik Distnet and Mumbai in State of Maharashra and floanng charpe on recetvabies and bock debs. The debentures were redeemable a1 par The whole of the debemures ae]
matured for repayment Further, the Company has not provided any interest an such debentures afler July 1, 2002, as detaled i Note No [ 3401 above Thesstore, the queshon ot
disclosure as o rate of interest etc does not anse. In the opmion of fhe Management, the niarket value of the secungy offered to the helders of the afuresad debentires v soffivien
caver the lizhility

The balances held under "Unpaid matured deposits and interest accrued thereon’, "Unpaid malured debentures and interest accrued thereon', ‘T npaid subordinated hatnlities and inferest
accrued thereon' and ‘Ohher financial lisbilities’ are subject to confirmation.

Other financial liabilnies includes advance received of Rs. 45,804 thousand (March 31, 2019- Rs |8, 700 thousand: Aprl 01, 2018 Rs. 11,200 thousand) Dam 5o F Saeavan e the
Managimy; Director

Other Financial Liabilities alse include refundable secunsy depostts tzken from lessces to whom prennses of the Company have been leased  Theretare, the question of furmshing

details about security, outstanding amount and terms of repayment dees not arise.

The Ind AS adjustments related to the deposits with respect o adopfion of EIR method under Ind AS 109 arc detailed under the following heads

1) Advance rent {Ind AS adjustment) {Note No. 5}

b) Rental mcome {Ind AS adjustment) (Note No. 21)

¢} Interest expense {Ind AS adjustment) (Note No. 25)

14. [PROYVISIONS
tRefer Note 14.01 & 14 02)
ta) Provision for peatuity - & 1
{b) Provision [or compensated absences 28 3] k1]
Total 58 %4 184
Nate 1401 Provision for grawity tepresents she excess of present value of obligation as at vear end over the fair value of gratuity plan assels as at year end a5 valued by independunt uetuari
~aluer
Nate 14.02  The Labihity in respect of leave encashment 1.¢. the provision for compensated absences has been made an an estimated basis, consadenng the face that the amount svesed therean
malenal
15, |OTHER NON-FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
(Refer Note 1501 & 15.02}
(a) Stattory dues 18 20 03
(b) Advance rene tInd AS adjustmenr) 137 T i
h) Advance for sale of property 39,950 19950 39930
Total 40,1058 40,728 40,756
Note 1500 The advance rent (Tnd AS adjustment} represents amount on account of valuing Rent deposits as disclosed in Note 13 at amortised cosl i compliance with requerements of Ind AS TU,
"Finaneial Insiruments” .
Nete 1502 Advance for sale of property as disclosed above represents amount recerved in advance in respeet of immovable property (frae hald) agreed o he sold The proceeds of the adhvance

ameutit have beens utilised by the Company 1 reduce its debis 105 15 also subject 1o charge as detailed i Note 13.02 above




MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
MANTPAL HOUSE, MANIPAL - 576 104
CIN: L63910KA1984PLCO0SYSE
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020
(Rs. in thousands)

Sr No.

PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 201% § As at April (1, 2018

16

SHARE CAPITAL
{Refer Note 16.01 to 16.06)

AUTHORISED
1.00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each I~ Lo 000 o
b ne
{March 31,2019 and April 01, 2018: 1,00.00,000) )
100,000 JLUTRUE)] TOLINK)
ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED & PAID U'P
83,801,961 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 cach, fully paid up v
(March 31, 2015 and April 01, 2018: §3,80,961) 83810 §3.810 B3R
Total 83,810 83,810 83.810
Note 16.01 Reconciliation of number of shares outstanding:
Particulars No. of shares Ry. in thousands
Equity Shares
Opening balance as on April 01, 2018 8380961 KIS
Changes during the year - R
Closing Balance as on March 31, 2019 %.380.961 B3R
Changes durimg the year
Closing Balance as on March 31, 202¢ 8,380,961 83,510
Note 16,02 Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares:
Equity Shares : The equity shares are having a par value of Rs.10 per share, Each sharcholder is eligible for ane vote per each share held The dividend
it any. proposed by the Board of Dircctors is subject 10 the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, excepl in the case vl
interim dividend. In the event of liguidation, the equity shareholders are cligible to recerve the remaining assets of the Company {atter distnbution ol
all preferential ameunts) in proportion Lo their shareholding
Note 1603 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares:
Equity Shares: M/s TVP Censultants Limited, Chennai - 7,001,073 shares (Shareholding percentage - 8 374} (March 31 2679 701075 shares. Apal
01, 2018 - 7.01.073 shares) (Shareholding percentage - March 31, 2019 - 8.37%: April 01, 2018 - & 37%)). Mr Naravan Far |° Manapal - 5 50 250
shares {Shareholding percentage - 6.64%) (March 31, 2019 - 5,56,250 shares; April 01, 2018 - 3,536,250 shares (Sharcholding percentage - March 31
2019 - 6.64%: April 0L 2018 - 6.64%4)), M/s ICDS Limited . Manipal - 449,163 sharcs (Sharcholding percentage - & et thvarch 310 204 -
4 49,163 sharcs: April 01, 2018 - 449,163 shares (Shareholding percentage - March 31, 2019 - 5.36%: Apnil 01, 2018 - 5 56% )
Note 16.04 There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts/commitments for the sale of shares or disimvestment

Note 16,05

Note 16.06

There are no sccurities cenvertible into equity shares, calls unpaid or forfered shares

The Management of the company has put in all the efforts 1o manage the capital by concentrating on recoveries ol dues, sale ol assets and ~citharent o
debts, The same has 10 be read with Note 13 and Subnotes thereon.




MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
MANIPAL HOUSE, MANIPAL - 576 104
CIN: L65910KA 1984PLCO05983
NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

[Rs. in thousands)

Sr No. PARTICULARS As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 01, 2018
17 OTHER EQUITY

{Refer Note 17.01 to 17.03)
(a) Capital Reserve 1 1,503 | 303 1503
(b) Capital Reserve 2

Opening 229014 223706

Add: Transferred 7,345 5,308

Closing 236,359 222014 223 TN
{¢) Securities Premium 28 995 28,9935 BRI
(d) Special Reserve 4.000 4.000 4
() General Reserve | e | e |t
{f} Other Comprehensive Incomne

Opening 10

Add. Transferred 87 10

Closing 97 10
(g) Retained Eamings

Opening (605.615) (614,043)

Add: Transferved 66,760 8.428

Closing (538,855} (6005.615) (614.04%)
Total {265,995) (340,187 (353.933)

Note 17.01 Nature and Purpose of Reserves

Particulars

Nature and purpose of Reserves

(2) Capital Reserve |1

(b) Capital Reserve 2

(d) Special Reserve

{¢) General Reserve

{f) Retained Earnings

The Capital Reserve 1 was created in the year ended 30th September, 1998 being the allotment

money of unsubscribed portion of equity warrants.

The Company during the year with a view towards restructuring s labiiities has settled
deposits/debentures/subordinated debts at discounted rates. The same has been done with duc
consent of the parties to deposits, debentures and debts. The interest write back pertaining to
deposits/debentures/subordinated debts Rs 7,462 thousands (I Y Rs 1 303 thousands) i~ treated
as Exceptional {tem in the Statement of Profit and Loss  Principal wnile back anising vut ot such
settlement Rs. 7,343 Thousands {P Y Rs 5308 thousands) 15 conswdered as capial recept
taken directly to Capital Reserve (viz Capital Reserve 2) as abave  This has heen done as por
the accounting policy followed by the Cempany. as stated in sub note {(m) of Signihcam
Accounting Policies, Key Accounting Estimates and Judgements. The Company had made

similar settlements during the earlier years also, by giving the similar accounting treatiment

(¢) Securities Premium

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares 15 recogmised i Securbes
Premium Reserve, In case of equity-settled share based payment transactions, the dilference
between fair value on grant date and nominal value of share 15 accounted as securilivs premun
reserve. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus slaies an
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

Special reserve was crealed duning earlier year/s. pursuant o Reserve Bunk el India
(Amendment} Act 1997

Under the erstwhile Companies Act 1956, general reserve was created through an annual trinslet
of net income at a specified percentage in accordance with applicable regulations Conscquent to
ntroduction of Companies Act 2013, the requirement to mandatonly lranster a specitied
percentage of the net profit 1o general reserve has been withdrawn. However. the amount
previously transferred to the general reserve can be utilised oniy in zceordance with the specitic
requirements of Companies Act, 2013

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned bl date, less anv wanslers to

special reserve, general resenve, dividends distributions pard te shareholders e,

Note 17,02 Balance of retained earnings as on Ist April, 2018 has been restated atler taking into account adjustments required by Ind A% P01 "1rsi - i
adoption of Indian Accounting Standards”. Refer the statement (¢ ) i.e. " Reconciliation of Other Equity under Ind AS and Previous GAAP™ ol

"First time adoption reconciliztions” as given under sub-note (u) of Significant Accounting Policies. Key Accounting Estimates and judgements

Note 17,03 Refer Statement of Changes in Equity tor details about other Comprehensive Income,




MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
MANIPAL HOUSE, MANIPAL - 576 104
CIN: L6591 0KA1984PLC005988

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

{Rs. in thousands}

Sr No. PARTICULARS 2019-20 2018-19

18. INTEREST INCOME '
On Financial Assets measured at Amortised Cost
Interest income on deposits with banks 67 79
Total . 67 79

19. DIVIDEND INCOME
Dividend on equity instruments 527 237
Total ' 527 137

29, RENTAL INCOME
{Refer Note 20.01)
Rent received 1,934 1.538
Total 1,934 1,538
Note 20.01 Rent received represents amount of income accrued on cancellable operating lease.

21. OTHER INCOME
(Refer Note 21.01)
Other Interest 172 10
Rental income (Ind AS adjustment) 51 134
Refund of court fee - 214
Liabilities no longer payable - 159
Miscellaneous income 37 3
Total ' 260 525
Note 21.01 The rental income (Ind AS adjustment) represents amount on account of valuing Rent deposits as disclosed in Note

13 at amortised cost in compliance with requirements of Ind AS 109, "Financial Instruments™ .

22, FINANCE COSTS
On Financial Liabilities measured at Amortised Cost
{a) Interest on Debt Securities - Matured Debentures 1,045 287
by Interest on Matured Subordinated liabilities 234 22
Total 1,279 513

23, EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
{Refer Note 23.01)
(a) Salaries, wages and bonus 1.024 854
{b) Contribution to provident and other fund 73 83
(¢) Staff welfare expenses L7 -
(d) Expenses related to post-employment defined benefit plans 100 73
Total 1,314 1,042
Note 23.01 Disclosure as required under Ind AS 19 'Employee Benefits', given under Note No. 27.07

24, DEPRECIATION, AMORTIZATION AND IMPAIRMENT
{a) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment - Own assets 05 R
{b) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment - Leased assets 351 351
(c) Depreciation on Investment Property 175 204
Total 621 650




MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
MANIPAL HOUSE, MANIFAL - 5376 104
CIN: L65910K A F984PLCONS988

NOTES FORMING PART OF FINA

IAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2020

(R, in thousands)

Sr. No. PARTICULARS 2019-20 2018-19
25 |OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
{Refer Note 25 01 & 25.02)
(a) Rates and raxes & energy costs 162 N
{b) Repairs and maintenance - Others 369 |34
(c) Communication costs M 23
{d) Printing and stalionery 57 74
() Advertisement and publicity 39 14
{1} Director’s fees, allowanees, and cxpenses 12 12
{g) Auditor’s tees and expenses 118 59
{h) Legal and Professional charges 786 524
(i) Brokerage expenses 313 2
(]} Bank charges 18 I3
(k) Travelling and conveyance expenses 213 (&)
(1) Oflice expenses 241 HE
{m} Registration and filing fees Ery W9y
(nIWeb desigming charges - 25
(01 Oflfice maintenance s
(p) Office Rent 7 8
(1) Interest expense (Ind AS adjustment) 79 107
{r) Miscellaneous expenses 72 63
Total 3,051 1,877
Note 25,01 Auditor’s fees and expenses:
PARTICULARS 2019-20 2018-19
Statutory audit () At
Certification and tax audit 20 10
Goods and Service Tax 13 ki
Total 118 59
Note 25.02  Refer Note 27.06 for disclosure on Othice Rent.
26 |EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS
{Refer Note 26 01)
Bad debts written off (67.07T) (7422
Bad debts recovered 205 267
PProvision for NPA written back Tt 443 13477
Settement credit {Interest portion} 7482 1.4us
Protil on sale of Investment Praperty S9.b12 -
Total Income (Net) 70,237 10,131
Note 26.01  The present activity of the Company is Testricted to recovery of dues and repayment of debts Avcordingds. the incame af e Compin
depends upon the recaverics made during the period which vary substantially on year 1o vear basis. Therefore, the Compary hits diselisd
the amount of bad debts recovered, reversal of provisions for NPA, settlement credit, bad debls written ofnund profit on sale of myestment
nreperty under this head.
26A |OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
{Refer Note 26A.01)
(A} Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i} Remeasurement of Delined Employee Benefit Plans 87 1)
() Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to Protit or Loss -
Total 87 10
{B3) Items that will he reclassified ta profit or loss;
{i) Fair Value Gain on Financial Assets carried at FYTOCI -
{ii) Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassified to Profit or Loss -
Total - -
Note 26A.01 Refer Para Il {i) of Significant Accounting Policics, Key Accounting estimates and Judgements
PARTICULARS ) 2019-20 2018-1%
26B |[EARNINGS PER SIIARE
Net profit after tax as per Statiement of Profit and Loss (Rs. in thousands) 66,760 §42%
Weighted average number of equity shares for calculating basic EPS (in thousands}) 8381 %381
Basic EPS per equily share {in Rs.} (Face value of Rs. 10 per share fully paid) 797 Lol
Weiphted average number of equity shares for caleulatmg diluted EPS (in thousands) 8381 1T

Diluted EPS per equity share (in Rs.} (Face value of Rs. I0 per share fully paid)

797




MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
MANIPAL HOUSE, MANIPAL - 576 104
CIN: L65910KA1984PLC005988

ANNEXURE TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR 2019-20 |

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, KEY ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS |

I. Corporate Information: [
The Registered Office of the Compuny is at Manipal (State: Karnataka). The Company had commenced its business us a Nuon-
Buanking Financial Company registered with Reserve Bank of India as 'Hire Purchase and Leasing Company’. However, the Reserve
Bank of India has since cancelled the registration of the Company and the Company has stopped activities of accepting, deposits
from public/debentures/subordinated debts. extending loans, hire purchase and leasing activities since July 01, 2002, The present
activity of the Company is mainly restricted to recovery of dues and repayment of the debts. The other necessary details are being

given under Note no. 13.01.

[1. Significant Accounting Policies: |

[a. Basis of Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements - Statement of Compliance |

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared to comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified unduer
Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules. 2014 and the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, The Indian Accounting Standards are prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read
with Rule 3 of Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companics (Indian Accounting Standards!
Amendment Rules, 2016, Up to the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company had prepared its linancial statements in
accordance with the requirements of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles {GAAP) in [ndia, which includes Stundards
notilled under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 as amended and the same has been considered as 'Previous
GAAP'. The figures for the year ended March 31, 2019 have been restated as per Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) to
pravide comparability. With respect 1o the transition date .e. April 01, 2018, only the Balance Shecet figures have been made
Ind AS compliant.

These {inancial statements are the Companys first Ind AS financial statements. The adoption was carried out in accordance
with Ind AS 101 'First-Time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards'. Reconciliations and effect of wansition have been
summarised in Sub note {u) below. The Company's financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees. which is also its
functional currency. All the vatues are rounded off 10 the nearest thousand.

These financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis under the historical cost convention except lor (a) certuin
Financial Assets and Liabilities and (b) Defined Emplovee Benefit Plan Assets, which have been measured at thelr tair values.
Further, the carrving value of all the items of Property, Plant and Equipment and [nvestment Property as on the date o
transition has been considered at deemed cost as provided under Ind AS 101 'First-Time Adoption of Indian Accounting
Standards',

These financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on Juiy 24, 2020 at
Manipal, Karnataka.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Profit and Loss have been prepared and presented
in the tormat prescribed in Division LI of Schedule I to Companics Act, 2003, The Statement of Cash FFlows has been
prepared as per the requirements of Ind AS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows'. The disclosures as preseribed in Division [ ol
Schedule TIT to the Companies Act, 2013 have been presented by way of notes forming part of the tinanciul statements 2iong
with other disclosures required under Ind AS. Disclosures as per Ind AS and Division 11 of Schedule 111w the Companies Act.
2013 have been made in this Financial Statement to the extent applicable.




Ib. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principtes requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities
at the date of the financial statements and the results of operations during the reporting period end. Although these estimates
are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could difter trom these estimates.
Ditferences between the actual results and estimates are recognized in the period in which the results are known / materialized.

ICriticaI Accounting Estimates

Depreciation and Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Property and Decommissioning Linbility

Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Property are depreciated over their estimated useful lives, ater taking inw
account estimated residual value. Management reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values of the assets annually in
order 10 determine the amount of depreciation to be recorded during any reporting pericd. The useful fives and residual values
arc hased on Company's historical experience with similar assets and after taking into account the anticipated technological
changes. [n case of signiticant changes in the estimates in future, the depreciation shall be revised accordingly. The Compam
has not made any policy with regard to decommissioning liability for the reasons specified in clause (d) heiow.

Altowance for Doubtful Debts on Trade Teceivables/Loans

When determining the lifetime expected credit losses for trade receivables, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and gualitatse
information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and credit assessment and including forward-looking
information. Judgements are required in assessing the recoverability of other advances including other receivables and
determining whether a provision against those Loans/receivables is required. Factors considered include relations with the
counterparty, the amount and timing of anticipated future payments and any possible actions that can be tuken to mitigate the
risk of non-payment.

Provisions

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of funds
resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing ol recognition
and quantification of the liability requires the application of judgement to existing facts and circumstances and these
Jjudgements are subject to change. The carrying amounts of provisions and liabilities are reviewed regutarly and revised 1o ke
into account changing facts and circumstances.

Empiloyee Benefit Obligations

Employee benefit obligations are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation invelves making varions
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate. future
salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexitics involved in the valuation and its long-term nature. employec
benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at cach reporting date.

Deferred Tax Assets "
Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred fax assets that can be recognized. bused
upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits. The amount of total delerred tax assets could change it estimates
of projected future taxable income or tax regulations undergo a change.




Impairment of Non-F inancial Assets

is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment hased on

The carrving amount of assets
ing amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable

internal/external factors, An impairment loss is recognised wherever the carry
amount, The recoverable amount is the greater of the assets, net selling price and value in use. In assessing valug in use. the
estimated future cash flows are discounted 10 their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of moncy and risks specitic to the asset. In determining net selling price. recent market
wrunsactions are taken into account, it available. If no such transactions can be ideniificd, an appropriate valuation model is
used. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the assct over its remaining usetul life.

Impairment of F inancial Assets
isions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected cash loss rates. The

The impairment prov
¢ assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment caleulation based on

Company uses judgement in making thes
Company's past history, existing market conditions as well as forward Jooking estimates at the end ut each reporting puriod,

[c. Fair Value Measurement ' ]

Fair value is the price that would be received to scll an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction hetween
markel participants at the measurement date under current market conditions.

‘The Company calegorizcs assels and liabilitics measured at fair value into one of three levels depending on the ability (o
ohserve inputs employed in their measurement which are described as follows:

i.  Level | inputs are guoted prices {unadjusted} in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

fi.  Level 2 inputs arc inputs that are observable, either directly or indireetly. other than quoted prices included within level 1
for the asset or liability,

iii. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the assel or liability reflecting significant moditications to obseryable reluted

market data or Company’s assumptions about pricing by market participants.

Property, Plant and Equipment j

Freshold land is carricd at historical cost. All other items of 'Property, Plant and Fquipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly atributable
to the acquisition of the items such as purchasc price, freight, Juties and Jevies. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts ol
the 'Property, Plant and Equipment’ and the borrowing cost if any, tll the date of installation of qualifying assct and any
atiributable cost of bringing the assct 10 its working condition for its intended use. bBxpenses incurred on start-up.
commissioning of the project including expenditure incurred on test runs and experimental production in respect of new unit il

any, are also capitalized.




Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All
other repairs and maintenance are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting peried in which they are
incurred.

An item of "Property, Plant and Equipment' and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the usset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the
Staternent of Profit and Less when the asset is derecognized. Further, when each major inspectien is performed, its cost is
recognized in the carrving amount of the item of 'Property. Plant and Equipment’ as a replacement if the recognition criteria are
satisfied. Machinery spare it any which are specific to a particular item of "Property, Plant and Equipment’ and whose use is
expected 1o be irregular are capitalized as 'Property. Plant and Equipment”.

Spare parts if any are capitalized when they meet the definition of 'Property, Plant and Equipment’ e, when the Compans
intends to use these for more than a period of 12 months. The management is of the opinion that, the Property. Plant and
Equipment held by the Company does not involve decommissioning cost and the cost of removal of such assets is not materiat
considering the size of the Company. Considering this aspect, the Company has not made any policies for cupitalizing the
decommissioning cost.

Depreciation on 'Property, Plant and Equipment’ generally is provided on the Straight Line Method over the usetul lives ol the
assets and residual value in terms of Schedule 1 to the Companies Act, 2013, Depreciation for the assets purchased/sold during
the period is proportionately charged. Building constructed on the lease hold land is depreciated over the period of lease or the
useful life in terms of Schedule 11 of the Companies Act 2013, whichever expires earlier. Leaschold land it any. is amortized
over the period of the lease. Improvements to buildings are amortized over the peried of remaining useful life of the building.
No further depreciation is charged on assets, where the assets have completed their useful life. The residual values. useful lives
and methods of depreciation of 'Property, Plant and Equipment’ are reviewed at gach financial year end und adjusied
prospectively, if appropriate and under such circumstances the appropriate disclosure is being made in the notes to accounts.

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with carrying value of its Property. Plant and Equipment
recognized as on April 01, 2018 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP as the deemed cost of the Preperty, Plam
and Equipment on the date of transition to Ind AS.

[e. Investment Property
Properties, held to earn rentals and/or capital appreciation are classified as investment property and measured and reported
cost, including transaction costs. It consists of Frechold Buildings that are not intended to be occupied substantially tor use by,
or in the operations of, the Company. An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of property is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the same period. Investment Properties are
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is provided in the manner as stated in clause {d) above.

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected 1o continue with carrying value of its Investment Property recognized as on
April 01, 2018 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP as the deemed cost of the Investment Properts on the dute
of transition to Ind AS.

if. Financial Instruments ]

[ 1. Initial Recognition and Measurement |

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party (o the contractual provisions of the
instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at Fair Value on initial recognition, except for uade receivable
which is initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly auributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities that are not at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on inilial
recognition. Regular way purchase and sale of financial assets arc accounted for at trade date, i.e. the date that the Company
commiits to purchase or sell the asset.

ﬂ
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[ 2. Subsequent Measurement - Non Derivative Financial Instruments

Financial Assets carried at Amortized Cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost it it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the
asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual lerms of the financial assel give rise on specified dates (o
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding.

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset other than equity investment is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income il'it
is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by hoth collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
asscts and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on principal amount outstanding. Where the Company makes an irrevocable clection based oa its
business model, for its investments which are classified as equity investments, the subsequent changes in the fair value will be
recognized in other comprehensive income.

Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above catcpories is subsequently fair valued through profit or loss.
Financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value. with transaction costs
recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. Subsequently, they are measured at fzir vatue and any gains or losses
are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as they arise.

Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the cffective interest method. For trade and other pasables
maturing within one vear from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due 1o the short maturity of
these instruments.

[ 3. Derecognition of Financial Instruments

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights 1o cash flows trom the financial asset expires or i
transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition under Ind AS 109, A financial liability ¥s derecognized
from the Company's Balance Sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.

4. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

In determining the fair value of its financial tnstruments, the Company uses a varicty of methods and assumptions that are
hased on market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date. The methods used to determine fair value include
discounted cash flow analysis, available quoted market prices and dealer quetes. All methods of assessing Fair value result in
general approximation of value and such value may never be actually realized.

For financial assets and liabilities maturing within one year from the reporting date and which are not carried at fair value. the
carrving amounts approximate fair value due to short maturity of these instruments.

w




|g._Taxes on Income

Income tax expense for the period comprises of current and deferred income tax if any. Income tax expense it any, 1s
recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or in equity, as appropriate.
Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss at the amount expected to be
paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
Balance Sheet date.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary diflerences between the carrying amounts ol asscls
and liabilities in the financial statements and their corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. The
Company recognizes a deferred tax asset arising from unused tax losses or tax credit only to the extent that it is probable tha
sufficient future taxable profits will be available against which unused tax losses or tax credits can be utilised by the entity.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the peried in which the liability is
settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. The carrying amount of deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are presented in the Balance Sheet afier setting ofT the same against each other.

Deferred tax assets are assessed in accordance with the tax laws in India, which is likely to give future economic benetits in the
form of availability of set ofT against future income tax liability.

Income tax paid (including tax deducted at source, tax paid on self-assessment or otherwise) and provision for current income
tax if any is presented in the Balance Sheet after setting off the same against each other.

[h. Revenue Recognition

[Revenue from Operations

Revenue is recognized only when it can be reliably measured and it is reasonable to expect ultimate collection in accordance
with the provisions of Ind AS 115,

The Company has followed the Prudential Norms for Income Recognition as prescribed by Reserve Bank of India for Non-
Banking Financial Companies. The principal write back pertaining to deposits & debentures (us stated in note 17) has been
directly taken to the credit of Capital Reserve in the Balance Sheet, since the same is in the nature of capilal reeeipt for the
reasons as stated in sub-clause (m) below.

Interest Income

Interest income is recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross carrying amount of financial assets
other than credit-impaired assets and financial assets classified as measured at FV'TPL. Interest income on credit impaired
assets if any, is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the net amortised cost (net of provision) of the financiul
asset.

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognized when the Company's right to receive the payment has heen establshed, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Rental Income

Rental income from operating leases is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss on straight line basis over the leuse term
unless there is ancther systematic basis which is more representative of the time pattern of the lease, Revenue from lease rental
is disclosed net of indirect taxes, it any.

-
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Rendering of Services

Revenue trom rendering services if any is disclosed net of GST and recognized when the outcome of a transaclion can be
estimated reliably by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction. The outcome of the transaction can he estimated
reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied:

iy The amount of revenue can be reliably measured,

ii} Itis probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company,

ili} The stage of completion of the transaction at the end of the reporting period can be reliably measured, and

iv) The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

[Other Income:

Interest on refund of [Income Tax is accounted in the year of receipt and Miscellaneous income is accounted as and when
received.

Employee Benefits

[Short-term Employee Benefits

Emplovee benetits such as salaries, wages. short-term compensated absences. expected cost of” bonus. ex-gratin and
performance linked rewards such as annual variable pay falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are
classilied as short-term benefits and are expensed in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

[Post Employment Benefits

Defined Contribution Plans

Provident fund scheme and employee state insurance scheme are the Company's detined contribution plans in which both the
employee and the Company contribute monthly at a stipulated rate. The contribution paid or payable under the scheme is
recognized during the period in which the emplovee renders the related service. The Company has no liability for tuture
benefits other than its annual contribution and recognises such contributions as an expense in the period in which employee
renders the related service,

Defined Benefit Plans

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan covering eligible employvees. The gratuity plan provides a lump-sum
payment lo vested emplovees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employment. of an amount based on the
respective employee's salary and tenure of employment with the Company.

The Company's ¢ontribution towards gratuity is invested in a Group Gratuity Policy with the Lite Insurance Corporation of
India. Deficit/'surplus of present value of obligations (under gratuity policy) over the fair value of gratuity plan asscts is
recognized in the Balance Sheet as an asset or liability, The same is determined based on an independent actuarial valuation
using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Gains and losses through remeasurement of the net gratuity liability-asset are
recognized in other comprehensive income and is reflected in other equity and the same is not eligibie to be reclassitied
subsequently 1o profit or loss. Premium expense incurred to keep in effect such a group gratuits policy is recognized in the
Statement of Profit and Loss as employee benefit expense in the vear such premium falls due. -

[Other Long Term Employment Benefits

‘The company has recognised lability in respect of leave encashment i.c. the provision for compensated ahsences as a long lerm
emplovee benefit, The same has been made on an estimated basis, considering the fact that the amount invelved therein is not
matertal.

iy




[j. Share Capital, Share Premium and Dividend Distribution ' |
Ordinary shares are classified as equity, incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares if any. are shown in
equity as a deduction (net of tax)} from the proceeds. Par value of the equity share is recorded as share capital and the amount
received in excess of the par value is classified as share premium.

The Company recognizes a liability to make cash distributions to equity holders when the distribution is authorized and the
distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. A distribution is authorized when it is approved by the sharcholders.
A corresponding amount is recognized directly in other equity along with any tax thereon.

Preference shares are classified as shares entitled for preferential right over dividend (before the equity shareholders). A
preterence share that provides for redemption a specific date or at the option of holder contains a financial liabilits.
Accordingly the same will be recognised as financial liabilities and any payment of dividend in relation to these shares shall be
considered as Finance cost in accordance with provisions of Ind AS 109,

ti. Exceptional Items : ' o |
When items of income and expense within profit or loss from ordinary activities are of such size, nature or incidence that their
disclosure is relevant to explain the performance of the enterprise for the period, the nature and amount of such material items
are disclosed separately as exceptional items.

jl. Lease Transactions
As a Lessee:
Leases are classified as finance lease whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating [eases.

The Company has adopted ind AS 116 effective Ist April, 2019, using the modified retrospective method, without giving
effect to opening balance of retained earnings.  Accordingly, previous period information has not been restated.

The Company’s lease asset (taken on short term) classes wholly consist of operating leases tor Buildings. The Compan:
assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inceplion of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether
a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contract tnvolves the
use of an identified asset (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
period of the lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset ("ROU™) and a corresponding lease
liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term
leases) and leases of low value assets if any. For these short-term and leases of Jow value assets it any, the Company recognises
the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease tHability adjusted tor any
lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives.
They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if” any. Right-ef-use assets are
depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the
underlying asset

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, it not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates. The lease
liability is subsequently remeasured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability. reducing the —
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made.

—
A lease liability is remeasured upon the occurrence of certain events such as a change in the lease term or a change in an index .
or rate used 10 determine lease payments. The remeasurement normally also adjusts the leased assets

Right of Use asset (ROU Asset) have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet as a part of Property. Plant and
Equipment. Corresponding lease liabilities are being disclosed as other financial liabilities either as current or non current
depending on the period of reversal. and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows.




As Lessor:
Leases are classified as Finance Lease or Operating Lease, in the manner stated above.

Lease income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss on straight-line basis over the Jease term untess there is another
systematic basis which is more representative of the time patiern of the lease, Revenue from lease rental is disclosed net ol
indirect taxes. if any.

[m.

Capital Reserve ]

The principal write back pertaining 1o deposits, debentures and Subordinated debs as siated in Note no. 17.01, is in the nature
of capita! receipt. The stand taken by the Company is also duly supported by the decision of Jurisdictional High Count
i.e.Honorable High Court of Karnatzka. as reported in 285 1TR 310 (2006} (CIT Vs ICDS Limited) whercin it is held that
surplus on purchase of own debentures is a Capital Receipt, not subject to tax and 249 CTR 214 (2011) (CIT Vs Compag
Electric Limited) wherein it was held that the waiver of the loan is a Capital receipt. In the case of the Company vie. CIT Vs
Manipal Finance Corporation Limited (ITA No. 795 & 794/2008) the Hon. High Court of Karnataka has dismissed the appeal
filed by the department on the similar grounds.Considering the above, the same has been direcily taken to the eredit of Capital
Rescrve in the Balance Sheet




n. Borrowing Cost
Borrowing cost if any, includes interest expense calculated using the effective interest method and finance expenses in respect
of assets acquired on finance lease if any.
Borrowing costs that are atiributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifving asset. are capitalized:
inventoried as a part of cost of such asset 1ill such time the asset is ready for its intended use. A qualifying asset 15 onc that
necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use.
All other borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

[n. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event. it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying econcmic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material. provisions are
discounted using & current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost. When the unavoidable costs of
meeting obligations under a contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under such contract {onerous
contract), the present obligation under the contract is recognized and measured as a provision.
Contingent liability is disclosed in the notes to accounts when in case of a present obligation arising from past events. it is not
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required (o settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate of the same is not possible.
Contingent assets are disclosed in the notes to accounts when an inflow of economic beneflts is probable.

tp. Impairment of Assets |
|Financial Assets |

in accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies the Expected Credit Loss {ECL) model for measurement and recognition
of impairment loss on financial assets and credit risk exposures, The Company follows “simplified approuach” for recognition of
impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. Simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date, right trom its initial
recognition. For recognition of impairment loss on other financiat assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly. 12-
month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However. if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. 1F
in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is ne longer a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. Lifetime ECL arc the
expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-munih
ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months atier the reporting
date. FECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) during the period it any. is recognized as expense/income in the Statement
of Profit and Loss.




INon-FinanciaI Assets Property, Plant and Equipment and fnvestment Property ]

As at cach Balance Sheet date. the Company assesses whether there is an indication that a non-financial asset may be impaired
based on external and internal factors and also whether there is an indication of reversal of impairment loss recognized in the
previous periods. It any indication exists or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company determines
the recoverable amount and impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of an asset exceeds s recoverable
amount.

Recoverable amount is determined, at the higher of the assets’ 1air value less cost to sell and value in use: and

- In case of cash generating unit if any, (a group of assets that generates identified, independent cash flows), at the higher of
cash generating unit’s fair value less cost to sell and value in use.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specified to the asset. In determining fair value less cost
to sell, recent market transaction are taken into account. [f no such transactions can be identified. an appropriate valuation
model is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the Statement of Profit and [Loss. except for properties previoush
revalued with the revaluation taken to OCI if any. For such properties, the impairment is recognized in OCLup to the amount ol
any previous revaluation.

When the Company considers that there are no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts are writien oft.
[f the amount of impairment loss subsequently decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event accurring after
the impairment was recognized, then the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through the Statement of Profit and
1.0ss,

Iq. Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per equity share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss after tax (before considering other comprehensive
income) for the year attributable to equity sharcholders of the Company by the weighled average number of equity shures
outstanding during the year. Diluted earings per equity share, if any, is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the »ear
as adjusted for dividend. interest and other charges to expense or income relating Lo the dilutive potential equity shares, by the
weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity share outstanding during the period except when the
results would be anti-dilutive.

]r. Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method in accordance with Ind AS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows', wherehy profivaler
tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of pust or future operating cash
receipts or pavments and items of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows are
segregated into operating, investing and financing activities,

|? Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and at bank and term deposits maturing within 3 months from the date of
deposit. Term deposits maturing bevond 3 months, carmarked balances with banks and deposits held as margin mones or
security against borrowings ete. have not been considered as Cash and cash equivalents.

F. Other Matters I

[Recent Accounting Pronouncements - Application of new and revised Ind ASs ]

All 1he Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") issued and notified by the Ministry of Corporate Alfairs are effective and
considered for the signiticant accounting policies to the extent relevant and applicable for the Company Ministry of Corporate
Affairs (“MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards.

: |Reclassiﬁcation/RegroupinglReworking of Previous Year's Figures

Under Ind AS the Company is required to prepare the financial statements as per Division [1I o' Schedule {11 o Compunics A
2013. The Company had prepared the financial statements for the earlicr year/s as per Division 1 of Schedule 111 to Companics
Act, 2013, Further, the Indian Accounting Standards require many adjustments (as Ind AS wvaries significantly from carlier
GAAP). Accordingly, previous year's figures have been reworked, regrouped and reclassified wherever necessary,




Fx. First-Time Adoption of Ind AS ' _l

The Company has adopied Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs with effect
from April 01, 2019, with a transition date of April 01, 2018, Thesc financial statements for the year cnded March 31, 2020 are
the fivst financial statements the Company has prepared under Ind AS. For all periods up to and including the vear ended
March 31. 2019, the Company prepared its financial statements ‘n accordance with the accounting standards notified under the
Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013. read together with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules. 2014 {"Previous
GAAP'). The Company has prepared opening Balance Sheet as per Ind AS of April 01, 2018 (transition date) by recognizing
all assets and liabilitics whose recognition is required by Ind AS, derccognizing items of assets or liabilitics which are not
permitted to be recognized by Ind AS, reclassifying items from Previous GAAP 1o Ind AS as required, and applying Ind A% Lo
measure the recognized assets and liabilities. The Company has classified the financial ussets in accordance with Ind AS 14
on the basis of facts and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS. The optional exemption and mandatory
exceptions availed by the Company under Ind AS 101 are as follows:

[Optional Exemptions ' J

Deemed cost for Property, Plant and Equipment and Investment Property

The Company has clected to continue with the carrying value of all of its property, plant and equipment und investment
property recognized as of April 01, 2018 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as ity
deemed cost as of the transition daie.

[Mandatory Exceptions - ]

Use of Extimate

On assessment of the estimates made under the Previous GAAP financial statements, the Company has concluded that there is
no necessity to revise the estimates under ind AS as there is no objective evidence of an error in thuse estimates, However
estimates that are required under Ind AS but were not required under Previous GAAP have been made by the Company lor the
relevant reporting dates reflecting conditions existing as at that date.

First ime adoption reconciliations of financial statements arc given as below {a to d read with Note 1to v therconk:




I FIRST TIME IND AS ADOPTION RECONCILIATIONS |

[a, Reconciliation of Balance Sheet as reported under Previous GAAP to Ind AS |
(Rs, in theusands
As at March 31, 2019 Asat April 01,2018
Note (as Effect of Effect of Transition
Particulary If;iwtn Previous Tral:‘sition tc? Ind Ind AS Previous l.n ind 4\ Ind AS
elow) GAAP* AS (including GAAP* {including
reciagsification) reclassification)
ASSETS
(1) Financial Assets
{ay Cash and Cash Equivakents 1,933 - 1933 2049 - 2044
(b Bank Balances other than {a) ahove 1,124 - 1.124 1,067 - [.067
(o1 Denivative Financial nstruments - - - - . -
(d) Recervahbles
117 Trade Receivables - - - -
f1L1 {ther Recelvables - . R R
(ed loans - - - . _
(17 Investments Note i 6,868 1 6 869 6 868 ] ORI
{2y Other I'mancial Assets 762 - 762 1.668 [IEISH
Total Financial Assces 10,687 1 10,688 11,652 1 {1653
(2) Non-Financial Assets
{2} Inventores Note 1 | {1y - 1 (i .
{1} Current Tax Asscts {Net) 322 - Epad 344 - 3
{cy Deflerred Tax Assels (Net) B - - - .
{d) Investrent Property 2,501 - 250 2,703 - RIS
{£) Biologicat Assets other than Bearer lants - - - - -
() Property, Plant and Equipment L] - 8,988 9434 - Gbid
{g) Camtal Work-in-Progress - - - - . .
th) Intangible Asels under Development - - - - -
111 Goodwil] - - - - - i
11 Other [ntangible Assets - - - - - !
(k) Other Non-Financial Assets 300 - 590} 582 38D
‘Total Xon-Financial Asscts 12,482 (1) 12,401 13,062 (1) 13,061
Tuotal Assets 23,089 - 23,089 24,714 - 24,714
LIARILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
{1y Financial Liabilities
fa) Denvanse Finaneial Instruments - - - -
(h) Payables
(1) Trade Pavables
- Total outstanding dues of micro terprises and
small enternrises i ) ) )
- Total outstanding ducs of creditors other than 341 ) 141 270 } 17
micre enternrises and small enlernrises
1i1) Other Payables
- Total owstanding dues of micro Enterprises R }
and small eoterprises i i i
- Tutul outstanding dues af ereditors other than
micro enterprises and small enterprises ’ . i . i
(¢} Deht Securitics - . R
{d} Borrowings (Other than Debt Secunties) - - -
() eposits - - -
(13 Suburdinated Liabilitics Note i - 29 300 26,500 - 24500 24 5
11 Other Financial Tinbilites N}S:;'f‘ 709,550 (784)|  208.806 224978 (7714 224207
Total Financial Liabilities 209,931 28,716 238.047 225198 28,779 253977
(2) Non-Financial Liabilities z
(a) Current Tax i 1abilities (Net) - - - - - -

_J (b) Provisions o4 - 9. 104 - fid
(¢ Deferred Tax fiabilities (Net) - - - . _ _
{dy Other Non-Financial Liabibties Note 1 39,976 749 40,725 0,043 713 d0, 750
Total Non-Finanvial Lisbilities 40,070 749 40,819 40,147 713 HERO0
FEQUITY
{2} Equity Share Capital Nate i 113310 (289,500 83 810 113,310 124,500 R381D
(b} OGther Eguity Note i (340,222 35| (340087 (353541 ¥ (33iuid)
Total Equity (226,912) (29,465)  (256,377)1  (240,631) {29,492y (270.123)
Totat Liabilities and Equity 23.089 - 23,089 24,714 - 24714

*The Previous GAAP figures have been reclassified to canform to Ind AS presentation requirements for the purpose of this note




Eh, Reconciliativn of net groﬁt as reported vnder previgus GAAP to Ind AS for the vear ending March 31, 2019

{Rs. in thousands]

Particuiars

MNote {'as giver below]

Previous GAAP*

Effect of Transition 1o Tnd AS
tincluding reclassification
adjustnrents)

AsperInd AS

1
o
LITY]
)
(3191
)
iy

[y
[vn)

(RES]

I

L1}
v
1
il
)

()

(3]
(vi)
(Vi)

dvial

(1x]
&3]
(]

¥l
Vil
Yl

1A
hY|
X1l

X1l
XIv

he )

X¥l

XVl

Xy

Revenue from Operations:

Intcrest [ncome

Divrdend Ineome

Kenial Income

Fees and Commussion Income

~Net Gam on Fair Vatue Changes

Set Gam on Derecognition of Financial nstruments under Amortised Cost
L atewory

Sale of Products tincluding Excise Duty)
Sile of Services

{Hhurs

Total Revenne from Operations {1)

Other Income

Totsl Income (1411}

Expenses:

Finance {osts

Fees and Comttission Expense

Net Lass an Fair Value Changes

Net Loss on Derecownition of Finaneal Tnstruments under Amortised Cost
Cateyory

Tmpaarment of Financial Instcuments

Cost of Materials Consumed

Purchases of Steck-in-Trade

Changes n Inventones of Fimshed Geads, Stnck-m-Trade and Waork-in-
Pragress

Emploves: Benefits Fxpenses

Depreciation, Amottisation and Tmparment

Other Expenses

Total Expenses ([V)

Profit belore Exveptional Items and Tax (111-1¥)
Fxceptional | tems

I'rafit befare Tax (V-V1)

Tax Expense:

{1y Current Tix

(21 Deferred Tax

Net Tax Expense

Profil foi the year lroin continuing operations (Y11-¥1
Profil from discontinued operations before tax

I'ax Expense of discontinued operations

Profit from discontinued operations (after tax} (X-XI
Profit for the year (IN+XE)

rher Comprehensive Tncome:

{1) ltems that will not he reclassitied subsequently ta Statement of Profit
and Less

- Remeasurement of Dctined Emplovee Benetit Plans

1) Income Tax relating 16 1tems that will not be reclassified to Profit ar
Loss

KSubtotal (A)

{11 ltems that will be reclassified subsequently to Stalement of Profit and
Loss

- Faxt Value Ciain on Financial Assets carried at FYTOC!

¢11) [ncome Tax relating to items that will he reclassified to Profit or Loss

Subtotal (B}
Total Other Comprehensive Incomel Losses) (A+B) (X1V)

Total Comprehensive lncome for the year (XII+XIV){Comprising
Profit and Other Comprehensive Income for the year)

Farnings per equity share (for continuing operations):
117 Basic

23 Dibuted

Earnings per equity share {for discontinuing operations):
1) Basic

127 Diluted

Exrninps per equily share {for continuing & discontinued aperations):

11} Basie
12 Miluted

Muie 1%
Mote i
Mote v

MNate 1 Natg b Note 1y,

Note v

Note and Note

Note ni

1.2
650
17555
3975
(1,720)
(10,131)
$.411

8411

LOw
1.0

1.00
L.00)

1.00
1.04)

1.854

(1.7
114

122
7
17

1,854

e

1379

At

11342
630

| 477
4.082
(1.703)
[LK13T)
R.428

10

ik

3438

1o
1.01

L

1.l

(R4
1431

#Equity shazes are of Rs 10° each fully paid

*The Previous GAAP figures have been revlassified 1o conform 10 Ind AS presentation requuemeits for the purpase of this aote




|c. Reconciliation of Other Equity under Ind AS and Previous GAAP

(Rs. in thousands)

Other Equity
Particulars MNotes il 01,
As at March 31, 2010|  AS 2t Aprill
2018

Other Equity as per Previous Indian GAAP (340,222) (353.,941)
Add/(Less) : Adjustments
Changes in Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities measured . ne

Note 1 35 8
as per Ind AS 109
Other Equity as per Ind AS (340,187) {353,933

d. Reconciliation of Statement of Cash Flows under Ind AS and Previous GAAP

There are no material changes in the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ending March 31, 2019 prepared under Ind AS
vis-a-vis the Statement of Cash Flows for the same year prepared under previous GAAP. as the Ind AS Adjustinents wre
non-cash in nature and same have been eliminated from profit before tax in the cash flow statement.

|Notes to First Time Adoption Reconciliations

Note i

Note ii

Note iii

Note iv

Note v

Financial Assets and Liabilities, with corresponding effect on other Assets/Liabilities:

Rent deposits received are recognised at fair value on initial recognition. Fair value of the deposits is arrived at by
discounting the future cash flows at incremental Effective Interest rate on the date of deposits. The corresponding eftect
has been given to "Advance Rent" under the head other Non Financial Liabilities.

Subsequently these deposits are measured at amortised costs. Impact of fair value changes as on the date of transition. is
recognised in opening reserves and changes thereafter are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss .

investment held for trading was previously considered as stock in trade under Indian GAAP and the same hay been
recognised as an investment at fair value through Profit or loss.

Preference shares were considered of share capital under previous GAAP and have been recognised in financial labilities
since they meet the definition of financial liabilties in accordance with Ind AS 109.

Actuarial gains/ losses on defined benefit plans

Under Ind AS, actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the other comprehensive income (“OCI™) as compared to being

recagnised in the Statement of Profit and Loss under the previous GAAP.

Other comprehensive income

Actuarial gains and losses pertaining to defined benefit obligations and re-measurement pertaining to return on plan asscts

are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income in accordance with Ind AS 19 and are not reclassified to profit or loss.

Revenue from operations

Rental income, Interest income and dividend income were considered as other income under previous GAAP and the sane
has been regrouped/reclassificd as Revenue from operations .

Reclassification and Regroupings

| The amounts as arrived at under Ind AS have been reclassified and regrouped, so as to give effect 1o the adjustments s

stated in note i to iv above, to the extent applicable. Further certain Financial Assets and Liabilities have been regrouped

under Ind AS, which was earlier clubbed under Other Current or Non Current Assets/Liabilities. Outstanding expenses are

included under trade payables under Ind AS. Bank charges are regrouped ro Other expenses from Finance costs.

e




MANIPAL FINANCE CORPORATION LIMITED
MANIPAL HOUSE., MANIPAL - 576 104
CIN: L65910KA1984PLC0O05988

Other Disclosures and Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the vear 2019-20

27.01 The Company has been incurring substantial losses over the last few years and major portion of its funds are blocked m non-perforiming assets In view of the same thete 1
considerable uncertainty that the Company will continug as a going conrcenr and meet its commnilments to its creditors. The accounts however have been prepared on the womy
concem basis in view of management's effors to seitle the liabilities with the debenture helders and subordinated debt holders by explorng the possibility of subiniting a new
scheme and or settlement at discounted rates etc as detailed i Note No. 13 and the management is being hopeful of recovery of dues from borrowers sa that dues of creditors
can be settled. Accordingly the management is of the opinion that the losses as aforesaid and also the circumstances as stated in note 13 of the financials statement will not have

adverse effect on the funcrioning of the Company

27.02 The Company has not recogmised the net deterred rax asset which constitutes mainly of carry forward lusses, excess depreciation claimed in [ncome Lax and Provisions fin
doubtful debts. as a matter of prudence. Details of which are grven below:

[Disclusurcs pursuant to Ind AS 12 "Income Taxes" ( Rs. In Thousands)

|(:\) Major components of tax expense/(income):

Company does not have any current tax liabiliny and company has not recognised deferred tax asset (net) as a matter of prudence. Accordingly the question of disclosure ot
components of tax expnseXincome) does not arise.

licable in India:

Srno. Particulars 2019-20 2018-19

ta) Profit belore Tax 66,761 8,428

ib) Comporate 1ax rate as per Income Tax Acl 1961 25.168% 35.168%

{c) Tax un Accounting Profit (a*h) 16,802 2,121

tdy {11} Tax o itenis not tax deductible: 2187 1,222
(1) Tax on items which are tax deductible and allowances (35143 (1871}
(iiiy Difference on account of Ind AS Adjustinents 7 (7
{iv} Tax on income Exemnpt trom tax 1133) (60)
(v} Tax difference on income taxed al specialsed tax rates 7925 -
{wi) Tax on other heads of income 356 258
{vii) Tax savings on sel off of Current year losses {2,081} (258
(viii) Tax difference on account of Losses for the year 16,282 1,595
Total effect of tax adjustments |(i) to {viii)] (16,502) {2,121)

fe) Current Tax expense recognised during the year {¢ as adjusted by d) -
Prior Period Adjustments - -
Delerred Tax expense Charged (recognised) during the vear - .
‘Total tax expense recognised during the year - -

th Effective tax rate (efa) NA NA

Naote : Company has no tax payable during the year as well as previous year, Hence effective tax rate is nil

[ Camponents of deferred tax assets (net) not recognised in Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit or Loss:

St no. Particulars Delerred Tax as at Adjustment for the vear
31-03-20206 31-03-2019 (-04-2018 2019-24 2018-19

tal Brought furward Busingss Losses 15,828 14894 17.086 1,929 12487y

b} L'nabsorhed depreciation [3.880 135828 13768 %2 ril

<) I‘inancial assets SB.693 70,422 TR0 t17 730y VAT

(d) Employees” Defined Benefit Plan 20 12 4 k] ?

{c) Depreciation on Investment Property 412 78 677 [316) S
Deferred tax {expensesyincome (not recognised) {16,043) {5471}
Net deferred tax assets (not recognised) 80,833 105,875 111,346

The Deferred Tax asset as disclosed above, not recognised i (he Financiat Starement, as a matier of prudence Accordingly no amounts charged or recognised in the statement
of profit and loss. There are no defered tax lishilities Aiso the deferred 1ax asset computation as above for the comparative pentod and transitional date has been made arrn ed

at considering the 1ax rate as 25.168%

| I} Reconcili

ation of deferred_tax (assets)lia

The question of reconciliation of defiered 1ax assets & liabitiity does not arise, since the same are not recopnised in the Mvocial statement

[{(E) Tax adjusiments made directly to Equity
There are no adjustments pertaining to current and deferred tax adjustment directly charged or credited directiy to Equity for the year and alse far the camparative perinds




2'}‘(]3‘Discinsures ursuant to Ind

[(F) Reconciliation of Income Tax Faid

. Asat st Asat 3st
Sene Particulars March 2020 | March 2019
(a) Al the beginning of the year (Paid - Advance IT/TDS) o 340
s3] Charge for the year - -
(c) Charge for the previous year adjusted - -
{d)y Tax Paid (net of refund received’ Adjusiment) during the year 479 (18]
(3] At the end of the yvear (Paid or provision) 201 322
[iG) Disclosure of Temporary Diffcrence, unused tax eredits and unused tax losses for which no deferred tax asset is recopnived in the Balance Shegt
. . Asat3lst As at Jst As at Ist
Srno. Particulars March2020 | March2019 | April 2018
fa Temporary Difference on account of Unabsorbed Depreciation (No $5.150 54547 54704
expiry dates}
{b} Tempaorary Difference on acconnt of Unused Tax Lossess . 606,863 39,197 67 888
{Refer table below for expiny dates of unused tax losses)
Temporary Difference on account of Depreciation on [nvestment 1.636 3893 2688
(c) Property
{d) Temporary Difference on account of Provisions on Financial Assels 233,202 303,648 317.148
Temporary Difference on account of Provisions on Employees Defined 81 ) )
(&) Benefit Plan
Luss . As at 31st As at 31st As at 1st
relating to Expiry years March 2020 | March 2019 | April 2018
2011-12 AY 19-20 - - 13.762
2012-13 AY 20-21 - 16,779 16,779
2013-14 AY 21-22 6,495 6,495 65495
2014-15 AY 22-23 1.490 1.4%0 1,490
2015-16 AY 23-24 1.904 1,504 1,904
2006-17 AY 24.25 7.064 7064 1064
2017-18 AY 25-20 8054 8.054 8,054
2018-19 AY 26-27 12,340 12.341 12,340
201920 AY 27-28 5.070 5.070 -
2020-21 AY 28-29 24.446 - -
Total 66,863 59,197 67,888

[tH) Applving the tax rate to arrive at the Tax Liability:

]

The Compuny has decided to avail the option of computation of tax as provided under section LISBAA of Income Tax Act 1961, Accordingly. the tax expenses are arrived al

235, 168% (Tax ai 22%, surcharpe -10% and Cess - 4%%)

AS 107 "Financial Instruments : Disclnsures™

[Financia! Risk Management

|

In the course of its business, the Company is exposed primarily to liguidity risk and eredit risk which may impact the fair value of its financial mstruments. The comprim adberes

10 a robust Financial management framework to address these risks.

{Credit Risk

Credit risk is (he risk that counterparty will ot be able to meet its obligations under a financial instrument leading to a financial loss. As detailed in Note 13.01 the compariy ias
not been performing operations since 2001 and the recovery of dues is under process. Management of the company has duly provided for impaitnwent losses where it is of the
opinion of that the parties wilt not be able to diseharge their liabilities. The maximum exposure to eredit risk in respect of the financial assets at the reporting dute i3 the canving

value of such assets recorded in the financial statements net of any aliowance for losses.

Financial Assets for which loss allowance is measwred using 12 month Expected Credit loss

{Rs. in thousands)

Particulars 31st March 2020 315t March 2019 Isf April 2IHS
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3355 1,933 2049
Othet Balances with Banks 1191 1,124 [Rilo
Investments 6,869 N & 809 6809
Other Financial Assels 506 762 | 66%
TOTAL 11921 10,688 11,653

Financial Assets for which loss allowance is measured using Liletime Expectcd Credit loss

{a) Trade Receivalies

The Company’s trade receivables include the due portion of kease and hire purchase along with interest acerued thereon.
The apeing analysis of trade receivables {before impairment) as of the reporting date (considered from the date they are due for payment |15 as follow s

{Rs. in thousands)

As on 3tst March 2019

As on Ist April

I Ay 31st March 2020
; ue for % on 31st Marc 2018
0-5 past due date - . .
Mare than § Years past due date 20,134 62,534 76,034
Tutal Trade Receivable 28,134 62,534 76,034

The company has already provided for impairment in full towards these financial assets afler assessing the extent of receoveries.




Fhe foliowing Iable summarizes the impairment loss model

{Rs. In thousands)

Particulars 313t March 2020 3";::;“" 13t Aprit 2018
{i) Balance as al begmmng of the year 62534 76034
i) Impairment Allowance . -
{in) Provisiems Written hack 47,400 13,500
7iv) Balance at end of the year 1134 62,534 76,074

1n addition to sbove a sum of Rs 32,031 thausands (B Y Rs. 7.422 thausands) wiitten #fF as Bad Deht

{h1 1.oans

A5 detatled in Note 401 of Financial slatements, the Company had assigned under an assignment deed certain debts and recoverables consisting 1nter alia stock on Tore lomg witls
equal liabilities of the Company 1w Vedachala Electronics & Financial Services Private Limited. The Company had discharged the assigned liabilitigs of VEIFSPL on its failure 10

service the same. The Company hased on the estimated recovery has made full impairment provision against the receivables of VEFSPL and from ather parties

{Hs. in thousands}

Duefor As on 3151 March 2020 As on 31st March 2069 As on 1sc April 2018

-5 past due dare - - -
Mare than 5 Years past due date 213,068 241114 241,114
Total Loans 213,068 241.114 241,114

The company his already provided for impairment in Ul towards these financial assets after assessing the extent of receovenes

The following fable summarizes the impatrment loss madel
{Rs. In thousands)

R
Particulart 3tst March 2020 3“;:’:‘;"" L5t April 2018
(i} Balance as at beganning of the year 241,714 241,114 -
1) Impairment Atlowance - - .
{i1) Provisions Written back 28,048 . -
{iv) Balancy a1 end of the vear 13068 241.114 241,114
In addition to above a sum of Rs. 28 046 thousznds (P ¥ Rs. Nil ) writien off as Bad Debt
Li Risk . . : ]

Liguidity Risk refers to the risk that the Company cannol meet its financial obligations vn time. The objective of the liquidity risk nanagement is to maintam sulticient liquidity and
ansure that funds are available for timely settlement of the obligations

The Company” s reasury department monitans the liguidity, funding as well as settlemants of these obligations, in addition to settlement of all other extenal ahilities The treasury
department monitors its risk of shortage of funds ot a regular basis (o ensure continuity of funding  In addition, the manzgement moniters the Campany™s net hqueiclies pasition

threugh rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash tlaws.

The Company slopped acceptingrenewing deposits, debentures and subordinated dehts with effect from July D1, 2002 Pubhc deposits accepred by 1he Company ate Fuliv matyses
As detgiled in Note 13.01. the Company is continuing (o put more efforts on realisation of the dues, sale of assets ete. so that its debts can be settled a1 the carbest possble date
The remaining depositorsidebenture holdersidebt holders have approashed the Company for settiement af their dues and the Company is in the process ot the same Fun turthe

Intarmation on Trade Receivables, Loans and Subordinated babilities refer Note 3. Note 4, Note 12 and Note 13 read with subnotes tiereon

As =t 315t March 2028
Particulars Lest than 1 Year 1to SYears | Alore than S Years Total
Finaneial Assets
Cash and Cash Fquivalents 3,355 - 3,355
(kther Balances with Banks - [ 1% - 1,191
Trade Recgivables - - - -
|.mans - - - -
[mvestnicm s 1 - %54 6,545
Other Financial Assets 849 417 - 06
TOTAL 3445 1608 6868 11,921
Financial Liabilities
Trade Payables 338 - - 338
Subordinated Liahifities 20000 9,500 - 29,561
(3 her Financial Liabilites 134,502 - - 134,502
TOTAL 154.840 &.500 - 164,340
As at 31st March 2019
Particulars Less than | Year 1165 Vears | More than S Years Tatal
Financial Assets
t"ash and Cash Fqguivalents 1.833 - - 1,933
Other Balances with Banks - [ ) - 1,124
Trade Receivables - - -
L.oans - - - -
[nvestments 1 - {868 6869
Other Financial Assets 13 TG - 62 |
TOTAL 1,967 1,853 6,368 10,688
Financial Liabilities
- Trade Payables 31 - - 341
Subordinated Liabilities - 29,500 - 29,500
Crther Financial Liakalties 208 806 - - 208,806
TOTAL 209,547 29,5400 - 238.647




As at 1st April 2018

) Particulars - Less than 3 Year 1105 Years | Moretian S Yeary Toial
Finanecial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalens 2,049 - - 2,049
Other Balances with Banks - 1.067 - 1,067
I'rade Receivables - - - -
Loans - - - -
Investments | - o Bo8 6,869
Other Financial Assels 170 1,458 - 1,665
TOTAL 2,12 2,565 6868 11,653
Financial Liabilities
Trade Pavables 270 - - 270
KSubordinated Liabilities - 20,500 - 29,500
Other Financial Liabilties 224,207 - - 224,207
TOTAIL 224,477 19,500 - 253,977

air value measurement hierarchy

Fair valug is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid to wansfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the pnncipal (or most advaniageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e.. an exit price). regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation technique

{Rs. In thonsands)

The company is primarily engaged in the busingss of financing and there are no separate reportable segments identilied as per the ind a5 |08 - segment reporting

Asz at 313t March 2020 As at 31st March 1019 As at 15t April 2018
Particulary . i CROymg
Carrying Amount Level 1 Level 2 Atnount Level 1| Level2 |ourrying Amount] Level Level 2

Financial Assels

At Amaortised Cost

Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,358 - - 1933 - - 2044 - -
Other Balances wish hanks 1191 i,124 1,067

Trade receivables - - - - - - - - -

{ pang - - - - - - - - -
Other Financial assets S0 Ta2 1668
At FYTPL

Im gsiments 6,869 1 6 868 6,869 1 0 868 6 /19 (O8]
Financial Liabilities
At Amortised Cost
Trade Payables 338 - - id] - - 270 - -
Subordinared laibilities 29,500 - - 249,500 - - 29 500 - -
(nher Financial Liabililies 134,502 - - 208,806 - - 224207 - -
27.04 [ Disglosu 08 "Seamen ing" |

question of making disclosures as required under Ind AS 108 does not arise

Company does not have any major customer contributing more than 10% of Revenue (including income considered as exceptional items)

Thercfore the

Pravisions of CSR is not applicable to the Company considering the fact that the net profit after eliminating protit from sale of immuovable property does ot exeeed Ry 30000

thousands

igg Acf, 2013

27.06 [ Disclosures pursuant to Tnd AS 116 " Lenyps™

The Company as » Lessee:

Depreciation charge for right of use assets by class of underlying asser Nil, since there are no Right 10 Use Assets However depreciation in respect of Building Lease hold,

disclosed vide Nete 9 read with nele 24.

Intercst expense on lease linbikities : Nil. since there are no such liabikities.

Expense relating to short term leases accounted for applying recognition exemptions. Refer Note 25 under the head "Office Rent”

Lxpenses relating to leases of low value assets accounting for applying recognition exemptians: There are no such leases.

Expenses relating variable lease payments nal inchided in the measurement of lease fiabilities: There are no such cases

[ncome from subleasing of right 1o use aysets. There are no such cases

Total cash outlow for leases Mot appheable. since 1here are no Right to Use Assets.

Cash outflows in respect of shart term leases covered under Note 25 of linancial statement. as stated above. Cash outflaw in respect of such leases within next 12 months Rs 7

thousands

Addittions to Right to use assers and Carrving amount right of use assets at the end of the reparting parind by class of underlying asset

Matuticy Analysis of Lease Liabilities applying ind AS 107: Not applicable, since there are no lzase liabilities

Year wise break up of Lease Rent Payables {cavered under [nd AS 116) - Not Applicable, since there are no such leases

There are nes such additions

Nature of Jeasing activities: The Company has taken the Buildimg on lease on a short term basis, which has begn used in the ordinary course of business

Cther disclousees are required under Ind AS 116 net gpplicable to the Company.

The Company as a Lessor:

The Company has given the commerial promises under operating leases The lease rent receivable there on credited to statement of profit and lass account vide note 20 Out of

the above. one Building given on short term lease.

The nature of leasing activity carried on by the Company is the giving of commercial premises on operating lease The management does not foresee any risk associated with any
rights in Teataining the underlying asset The lease is supported by lease agreementMOU and lesses is ruquired (o hand over the possession of the property back 1 the Company
on expiry of the lease term. There are no other risk management strateay with regard to the lease.

Year wise breakup of Future Lease Rental Receipls:

Rs . In thousands

Amount receivable doring next o g 315t Msirch 2020 << :
1 Year 1471
2 Year 1,559
3 Year 909
4 Year G944
5 Yea -
Total 4,973




27.07 | Disclosures relating to emplovee benefits as per Ind AS 19 "Employee Benefifs'”

1AI Bricf description of the plans:

Appropriate Authorities. The Company's Defined Contribution Plan is Emplovees’ Provident Fund {under the prov isions of Emplosee Provident Fund and
Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952). The Company has no further obligation beyond making the contributions to the said fund. The Company s ey
contributing towards Emploves State Insurance Plan as per statutory requirements, whergin the Company has no furher obligatun bevond making the

contributions. The Company's Defined Bencfit Plan s Gratuity

The Company is also providing employee benefit by way of encashment of earned leave The provision tor the same has boen made on cstimated basi he
amount invelved therein 1s not material, considering the size of the Company. The Company has not opted for actuarial valuation. considermy the cosl

involved and also the concept of materiality,
The Company's detined benelit plan 1s gratuity.

R) Charge to the Statement of Profit and Loss on account of contributions:

]
j
el

The Cempany has two schemes for Long-Term Beneflts' Provident Fund and Gratuity. In case of Funded Schemcs, the funds are admimstered threu

.

(R In twusinnds)

Particulars

2019-20

2018-19

Company's contribution to

1. Provident Fund

it. Employce State Insurance Plan
i{i. Leave chcashment provision

a1}

i

[

[(‘) Disclosures pertaining to Gratuity

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Graluity Act. 1972 under which an employer who has comptelad five vears of service s entitled o speainie
benefits. The level of benetits provided depends on the member’s length of servicy and salary at retirement age. This fund 15 bemg mamtamed b | e
Insurance Corporation of India (1.ICY. ‘The disclosures a5 required under Ind A5 19 is made below, on the basis of repon obtaned from LIC

{Rs. In Thousands)

Particulars

Year ended 31st
March 2020

Year ended 31st
March 2019

fi iFati
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the ycar
Interest Cost
Current service cost
Past service cost
Remeasurciments - Net actuarial {gaing)/ losses
Benetils paid
Present value of obligation as at the end of the year

:h. .t i - = oY
Plan assets at the beginning of the year
Tnierest mcome
Contribution by employer
Renetit paid
Return on plan assets (Fxel interest income)

Fair value of the plan assets at the end of the year

VE - ised in the St; { Profit and I
Interest cost

Current service cost

IPast senace cost

Tutal

Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumplions
Keturn on plan assets (including interest income)
Total

-

Present Value of Funded Delined Benefit obhigation
Fair value of plan assets
Net Tunded Asset/{Liability)

Discount rate

Salary escalation rate - over 4 leng-term

Morlality rate

IR

i

299

A

LY

(3
24
57

341
422

81

6. 38%
5 00%,

Indian assured hves
mortality (2012-14)
{LItirveate)

il
(=2
1n

308
294
16)

7 Apt,

RRTRES

Indian assured Faes

mortahty (2012-14}
{Ultimate )




The attrition ratc is 5% for the year ended 315t March, 2020 ( 5% tor the year ended 31st March. 2019)
The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuanial valuation. take account of inflation_ seniority, promaotion and other relevant thetors, such s

supply and demand 1n the employment market.

The emplovees of the Company are assumed 1o retire at the age of 58 years.

The expected coruribution payable to the plan next vear is Rs 7 thousand.

Sensitivily for significant actuartal assumptions is computed by varying on¢ uctuarial assumption used for the valuation of the defined benelit oblgation,

keeping all other actuarial assumptions censtant. The significant actuarial assumptions are discount rate and satary escalalion rate

Year ended 31st Year ended 3Est
Particulars March, 2020 {Rs. In | March, 20049 (Rs. In
thousands) thousands)
1% increase
I Discount rate 319 7 RSN
it. Salary escalation rate - over a long term 6d 26 127 i
1, Adtrition rate . 34789 07137
1% decrease
i Dhscount rate 6 an 327
1. Salary escalation rate - over a long term 3972 R
i, Attriion rate 34047 Wi 3K

The scnsitivity analvsis presented above may not be representative of the actual charge in the defined benetit obhgzation as i0s unlikels that the change n
assumption would occur in isolation of anc another as the assumptions may be-corrclated,

The defined benefit obligation shall mature after 31st March, 2020 as lollews

Particulars Rs. In thousands
Year | 2057
Yeur 2 RAEAN
Year 3 20,66
Year 4 2072
Year 3 2077
Next 5 Years ( 6-10 Years) 23099
Tavouts ahove 10 years 208 75
Total Expected Payments S44.07

27.()R|Financial and Non-Financial Assets i

in the vpinion of the Board of Directors. the assets listed under the heads Fmancial Assets & Non-Financial Assets fother than Properts Plant aed
I:quipment, Investment Property and Investments) as stated in Nate 1 to 10 the Balance Sheet, have 4 value on realisation in the ordinary cotirse of busmess

atleast equal te the amount at which they are stated.




27.09|Disclosure of Related Purties/Related Party Transactions pursuant to Ind AS 24 "Related Party Disclosures”

a) List of Related Parties and its Statug of Transaclions _]_
Whether Related party
Sr. Ne. Name of the Related Party Nature of relationship transactions entered during
the year (Yes/Nu)
| T Marayana M Pai. Managing Drector Key Managerial Personnel Yes
2 T Sanjay Pai, Chiet Finance Otficer Key Managerial Personnel Yes
3 Stipra Agarwal, Company Secretary Key Managenal Personnel Yes
l(hy Summary ef Related party Transactigns
SI No Particular K MP and their Relatives Other Related Parties Total
£ X icul:
articuiars 2015-20 2018-19 2019-20 2018-1% 2019-20 2018-19
A. Volume of Transactions: .
Al Advances received 27.104 7500 - - 27004 7|
A2 Salary and Uther Allowances 673 298 - - 673 AR
B. Balances at the end of the year:
Bl Balance in advances received 45 804 18,700 - 158U+ 18,7
C. Other disclosures:
1 (Other Payments to Dirgctors - - 12 12 12 12
ici Disclosure of Related Party Transactions
(Rs. in thousands)
$r. No. Nature of Transactions/Parties 2019-20 2018-1%
Al Advances reccived during the year
T Narayana M Pat. Managing Direetor 27104 7500
27,104 7.500
A2 Key Management personnei Compensation:
T Sanjay Pai. Chivyf Finance Officer
Shart term Emplovee benetits 223 223
Post Fmployment benefits 30 a0
Total 253 253
Shipra Agarwal, Company Secretary
Short term Employce benefits 420 43
Total 420 45
Grand Total 673 298
Bl Balance in advances received
T Narayana M Pai, Managing Director 45 804 18.70¢
45,804 18,700
Cl Other Payments to Directors
Sitting Fees to Independent-non exccutive
directors 12 12
12 12




27.10|Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 37 "Provisions. Contingent Ligbilities and Contingent Asse

2711

27.12

2714

27158

A. Liability in respect of damages and others in respect of suits against the Company betore varions Courts, Consumer Courts ete (in sespeat ol repiy ment ol deposts gctentaes detts wo
iterest & other eosts) has nor been quantified and provided. due to lack of information with the company and alse considering the Tact that many of suchy customers b approachiod 1
Company for seitlement at discounted rates. The collection of informaton 1s under process

B. No provision made for disputed come tax liahility for varions years wherever department has preferred an appeal before the Honorable Tribunal, Honorable High Court and Hormabis
Supreme Court. The question of quantification of liability thereon, docs nol arise, for the reason that the cases were allowed i faver of the Company. by the lower appellate suthoriies

€. The Company. during the year has received show-cause notice Irom Registrar of Companies. Kamataka (ROC)Y with regard to non compliance of appointing women directors on the Hoarid
of Directors and non compliange with regard 1o non-signing of dicectors reports by the requisitc number of directors as per the provisions of sceiion 13406) of the Companws Act. 2015 The
managment of the Company has filed an application or adjudication of penzlties under Companies Act, 2013 which is pending before the ROC i the absence of an adpudication o penalties
and speeific demand notice, the management is unable to quantify the penalty amount. The show cause notice as aforesaid also refers to certain ather matrers. includipg proposal af acton fin
unpaid matared deposits with interest thereon. The Company has made the representation before the Registrar of Companies Ramataka 1o drop the proposabs since nethe ooeon o7

Company, either there are no non compliance or the Company has taken sufticient steps to comply with the observations,

The Management of the Company 7s of the epinion that the directors of the Campany arg not disqualified uis [64(2) of Compaies Aot 2005 [ spike of the Tact that the Compars e
stopped repaying marured debeniures/debts'deposits and interest thereon as detailed in Note no. 13.01), for the reason that the Compimy s explenmg the posaibihiy ol presenman: news
scheme of arrangement. as detailed in the aforesaid note and also considering the fllowing aspect:

As explained in Note 13.01 to the financial statements, the Company has stopped repayving the matered debentures/debts deposits annd miterest thereon. with effeet from 3th Jane Yo The
penod of 3 vears has already elapsed (since the last of the maturity dares, on which the Company has stopped the repavment as aloresaid} as on st Apnl 2014 ve. the commencement o the
Companies Act, 2013, Accordingly, there are no new failures o repay liabilities after the commencenment of Comparnies Act 2013 as contemplated under Scetion 163421 af the Companies

At 2013 and thevefore the directors of the Company are not disqualified.

Impairment of Assets ]

|Non financial

The management of the company 1s of Ihe opinion that carrying value of assets does not exceed its recoverable value. Further the Company does not hive any intormation whether el o
external, that indicate that impairment loss may have occurred. Considering all these aspects. the company has net impaired any of the non finangial assets. This note 15 to bu read alony with
Note 8,09 to Financial Statements.

ts |

A
Investments :

The management of the company is of the opinion that Financial Assets held as Equity Instruments and Preference Shares have not bego mpaired. The detats of amooor invested in equins
instewments and preference shares are disclosed vide Note no. 5 to Financial statements.

Financi

Trade Keccivables:

I'he company has already provided for impairmient loss in tull wwards these Financial assets as per the RBI Prudential nonns. The Company 1s of the opituon that the amount sa anpnied s
appropriate as on lhe date of the Balance Sheet and accordingly there is no requirement to consider any Turther inpairment towards these linancial assers. Trade recevables are imparau
under Life Time Fxpected Credit Loss Method and the details are given vide nore. Note 3 and 27.03 to the Financial statements

Lonans:
As per RBI prudennial nornis company has already provided in full towards loans. Therefore the question of framing further policy in this conneotion does not anse Loans arc impaoed andi
Late Time Expected Credit Loss Method and the details ave given vide note, Note 4 and 27.03 1o the Fmancial statements

Other Financial Assets:
(Uther financial assets {other than covered above) consists mainly of and Cash & Bank balances and deposits with consumer connts. The Compuny dves not have amy monmation wletl:
internal or external, that indicate thal impairment loss may have occurred. Accordingly the company has nat impaired any of those linancial assets

“ash Flows) with rezuard to financing activities {Rs. In thousands

Current Year;

Particulars (Opening balance as on Cashflow Non cash Transaction (Settlement| Closing balance ss on 31xi
f Ist April, 2019 Shilows portion as detailed in Note 17.01} March, 2020
Unpaid marured deposits 179 (89 - o
Unpaid matured debentures 18,652 {14,023 {236) BRI
l'np:n'(l subordinated liabilities 135,657 (62 468) (7,108 fai
Total Cash outflow (net) on account of Hnancing activities 154 488 {76,580} (7.345) T(I,St’:}—(
Previows Year:
Non cash Transaction
i i 315
Particulars Opening hallance ason Cashflaws (Settlement portion as detailed in Closing balunce as on 315t
1st April, 2018 March, 201y
Naote 17.01)
Unpand matured deposits 17% - - C
Unpaid matured delientures 27,366 {8,906 282 [REIEN
Lnpaid subordinated liabilities 147.243 £5,990) 1 AN
Total Cash outlow (nety on account of financing ac 174,788 (14,992) * (5,308} PRI

The Campany has not verified the Property. Plant and Equipient under lease falling under the head “Leased Machineries and Equipnient”™ & “Leased Vehiulos and Furnulere” consilerimg:
the fact that the present value of such assets are not material and also considening the cost invalved in the aforesmd verification

The Company has. in alt material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over finameial reporting and such internal financial controls over finanel repurting were operaig:
cifectively as at 31st March 2020, subject to the Note 2714 of financial statement.




27.16|Note on Covid . o : . - B : - I

The spread of sars-coV-2 virus (referred as “Covid-19”) across the globe and in india has contributed to a significant decline and volatility in global and
indian financia! markets and a shrink in the economic activities. The Company, however, believes strongly that its offerings to the customer would not
significantly impact its revenues.

The impact on future revenue streams could come from lower rate of recovery of receivables and lower rental incomes on account of waivers /
concessions in rent sought by the tenants and cancellation of lease agreement which is the major source of income for the Company. The Company
however expects the rental income to be back to the existing levels post the pandemic. However, the impact assessment of COVID-1% is a continuing
process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration.

The Company has made detailed assessment of its liguidity position for the next year and the recoverability and carrying value of 1ts assets comprising
investment propertics, investments, other financial and non-financial assets etc. Based on current indicators of future economic conditions, the Company
expects to recover the carrying amount of these assets. The situation s changing rapidly giving rise to inherent uncertainty around the extent and timing
of the potential future impact of the COVID 19 pandemic which may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial
statements.

Duc to the nature of the pandemic and non-availability of necessary vaccine / treatment for its eradication, the Company will continue to be vigilant on
various developments / impacts in the future so as to insulate itself from any material adverse impact.

iTowever the company has stopped accepting/renewing deposits, debentures and subordinated debts with effect from 1st day of July 2002 and It has also
not advanced any loans since then as detailed in Note 13 read with subnotes thercon. The company has already provided for impairment loss in full
towards its loans and trade receivable and these accounts have been overdue for more than § years as detailed in the note 27.03 to the Financial
statements. Accordingly extension of moratorium in terms of COVID-19 regulatory package announced by Reserve Bank of india { RBI ) on March 27,
2020 and to RBI notification dated May 23, 2020, 1o borrowers is not applicable to the company.

Company has continued its efforts to recover the dues and settle the fabilities in the normal course. Accordingly Company is of the opinion that there is
no major impact of the pandemic on the operations in the future, in comparison with the Pre -Covid Situation,

27.17 The Company has earned Profit during the year and also during immediate previous financial year i.e. year ending 31st March 2020, due to Exceptional

Income as stated in Note 26.

27.18 The nature of pending litigations has been disclosed in Note 27.10. However the impact on the financial position of the Company is not ascertainable for

the present, for the reasons as mentioned therein

27.19 The Company does not have any long term contracts including derivatives contracts for which there were any matenal forseeable losses.

27.20 The Company is not required to transfer any amount to the investor education and protection fund for the reason that there are no unciaimed

deposits/debentures/subordinated debits as on 3 1st March 2020 and also for the reasons as given in Note 13 read with subnotes thereon

As per our report of even date
For M/s Sriramulu Naidu & Co
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. : 0089758

Sd/- Sds-
Sd/- _ T. Narayan M Pai Vinoda Sherigar
CA Sriramulu Naidu Managing Director Director
Partner DIN: 00101633 DIN: 07224755
Membership No, : 018244
UDIN; 20018244AAAAGCT7813
Margalore -
July 24, 2020 Sdr- Sd/-
T. Sanjay Pai Shipra Agrawal
Chief Finance Officer Company Secretary
M. No. : A37076
Manipal Manipal
July 24, 2020 July 24,2020
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Schedule to the
Balance Sheet of a Non-Banking Financial Company
(as required in terms of Paragraph 988 of
Non Banking Financial Companies Prudential Norms(Reserve Bank) Directions. 1998

Manipal Finance Corporationn Ltd, Manipal

As on 31st March 2020

(Rs in lakhs)
Particulars
Liabilities side: Amount Amount
outstanding Overdue
{1) [Loans and advances availed by the NBFCs
inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid
(a) Debentures: Secured 59 59
“Unsecured 0 0
(other than falling within the
meaning of public deposits)
{b) Deferred Credits ¢] o]
{c) Term Loans g 0
(d) Inter-corporate ioans and borrowing 4] 0
{e) Commercial Paper
{f} Public Deposits 1 1
(9) Other Loans (subordinated debts, working Tah TaR
capital lcans)
(2}|Break-up of (1)(f) above {Outstanding public deposits
inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid):
{a) In the farm of Unsecured debentures 0 0
(b) in the form of partly secured debentures | E. 0 0
debentures where there is a shortfall in the
value of security
(c) Other public deposits 1 1
Assets side: Amount
cutstanding
(before
provisions
(3}|Break up of Loans and Advances including bills
recelvables (other than those included in (4) below):
{a) Secured a
{b) Unsecured (including debtors) 2,101
(4)|Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire and
hypothecation loans counting towards EL/HP activities
{l} Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry
debtors:
{a} Financfal lease B
{b) Operating lease o}
(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry
debtors; -
{a} Assets on hire 1
{b) Repossessed Assets 0
(iif) Hypothecation loans counting towards EL/HP activities
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed 0
{b} Loans other than (a) above 0
()| Break-up of Investments:
Cutrent Investments:(Stock in trade considered)
1. Quoted:
(i) Shares: {a) Equity { Rs 1000) 0
(o) Preference 0
(i} Debentures and Bongs 4]
{iii} Units of mutual Bonds - ICICI Prudential Flan 0
(iv) Government Sacurities 4]
{v} Others (please specify) 0]




2. Unquoted {Stock in trade considered?
{i) Shares: (a) Equity
{b) Preference
(i) Debentures and Bonds
(ifiy Units of mutual Bonds
(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others (please specify)

Long Term Investments:
1. Quoted:
(i) Shares: (a) Equity
(b) Preference
(li} Debentures and Bonds
(iii} Units of mutual Bonds
(iv) Government Securities
{v) Others (please specify)
2. Unquoted.
(i) Shares: (a) Equity
(b) Preference
(i Debentures and Bonds
(i) Units of mutual Bonds
{iv) Government Securities
(v) Others (please specify) - IDBI BONDS
Interest accrued on hvesiments
Fixed deposit with Nationalised Banks

DOOO-‘._)C)

(23]
o0 S om CCoOOoOOo 00O

[

o

{6){Borrower group-wise classification of all leased assets, stock on hire

and loans and advances:

Category

Amount net of provisions

Secured

Unsecured Taotal

1. Related Parties

{a) Subsidiaries

() Companies in the same group

(¢} Other related parlies

oo

2. Other than related parties "

Total

o|lo|olo|c

Cl|lolo|o|o

securities {both quoted and ungquoted):

Category

Market Value/ Book Value
Break up or fair |(net of

vitlue o NAY provision)

1. Related Farties

(a) Subsidiaries

(b) Companies in the same group

¢} Other relzled parties

2. Other than related parties

Total

o|lolo|olo

(8) Other Information

Particulars

Amount

{1}|Gross Non - Performing Assats

NIL

=

a) Related Parties

NIL

{b) Other than related parties

Nit.

t
il
to

(i) |Net Non - Performing Assets

NIL

(8) Related Parties

NIL

fabl )

{b) Other than related parties

{ifi) Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt

NIL

NIL




